
 

 
THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO PARTICIPATE IN ALL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS.  If you need a special accommodation to participate, 
please call the City Recorder’s Office at (801) 756-6347 x 4. 
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING.  The undersigned duly appointed recorder does hereby certify that the above agenda notice was on the bulletin 
board located inside City Hall at 20 North Main and sent by e-mail to The Daily Herald located in Provo, UT, a local newspaper circulated in 
Alpine, UT. This agenda is also available on our web site at, and on the Utah Public Meeting Notices website at www.utah.gov/pmn/index.html 

ALPINE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA 
NOTICE is hereby given that the CITY COUNCIL of Alpine City, Utah will hold a Public Meeting on Tuesday, 
October 26, 2021, at 6:00 pm, 20 North Main Street and can be viewed on the Alpine City YouTube Channel.  A 
direct link to the channel can be found on the home page of the Alpine City website: alpinecity.org Public Comments 
will be accepted during the Public Comment portion of the meeting.  
                                    
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
 

A. Roll Call   Mayor Troy Stout 
B. Prayer:   Lon Lott 
C. Pledge:   By Invitation 

   
II. WORK SESSION: Lambert Park Conservation Easement 
 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

A. Approve City Council minutes of October 12, 2021 
B. CUP Partial Payment No. 2: $109,948.75 
C. Final Payment – 2021 Overlay Project – Kilgore Contracting:  $460,176.88 

         
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT    
 
V. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Audit Report FY2021 
B. Alpine Days Report 

 
VI. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. The Ridge at Alpine – Final Design of Oak View Drive 
B. Review 2021 Update to the General Plan 

 
VII. STAFF REPORTS 
 
VIII. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Discuss litigation, property acquisition, or the professional character, conduct 

or competency of personnel. 
 
         Mayor Troy Stout  

                              October 22, 2021 
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PUBLIC MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING ETIQUETTE 
 

 
Please remember all public meetings and public hearings are now recorded.  
 

• All comments must be recognized by the Chairperson and addressed through the microphone.  
 

• When speaking to the Planning Commission/City Council, please stand, speak slowly and clearly 
into the microphone, and state your name and address for the recorded record.  

 
• Be respectful to others and refrain from disruptions during the meeting. Please refrain from 

conversation with others in the audience as the microphones are very sensitive and can pick up 
whispers in the back of the room.  

 
• Keep comments constructive and not disruptive.  

 
• Avoid verbal approval or dissatisfaction of the ongoing discussion (i.e., booing or applauding).  

 
• Exhibits (photos, petitions, etc.) given to the City become the property of the City.  

 
• Please silence all cellular phones, beepers, pagers, or other noise making devices.  

 
• Be considerate of others who wish to speak by limiting your comments to a reasonable length 

and avoiding repetition of what has already been said. Individuals may be limited to two minutes 
and group representatives may be limited to five minutes. 

 
• Refrain from congregating near the doors or in the lobby area outside the council room to talk as 

it can be very noisy and disruptive. If you must carry on conversation in this area, please be as 
quiet as possible. (The doors must remain open during a public meeting/hearing.) 

 
Public Hearing vs. Public Meeting 
 
If the meeting is a public hearing, the public may participate during that time and may present opinions 
and evidence for the issue for which the hearing is being held. In a public hearing there may be some 
restrictions on participation such as time limits.  
 
Anyone can observe a public meeting, but there is no right to speak or be heard there - the public 
participates in presenting opinions and evidence at the pleasure of the body conducting the meeting.  
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ALPINE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC MEETING  1 
on Tuesday, October 12, 2021 2 

 3 
Mayor Troy Stout called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. and welcomed all in attendance. 4 
                                   5 
I. Roll Call:  The following were present and constituted a quorum: Jason Thelin, Greg Gordon, Carla Merrill, 6 

Jessica Smuin, Lon Lott    7 
 Prayer:   Carla Merrill 8 
 Pledge:   Bonnie Cooper 9 
 10 
Staff: Shane Sorensen, Austin Roy, Craig Hall, Chief Brian Gwilliam, Chief Brian Patten, Bonnie Cooper 11 
 12 
Others: Wendy Fisher, Will Jones, Gayle Rudolph, Lon Nield, Amanda Collins 13 
  14 
II. WORK SESSION: Lambert Park Conservation Easement Draft Review 15 
 16 
Mayor Troy Stout welcomed Wendy Fisher from Utah Open Lands, who would be helping at tonight’s meeting with  17 
the Lambert Conservation Easement draft review. Craig Hall, City Attorney, said he had met with several of the City  18 
Council members, staff, and attorneys at his office to get input on the document. Council needs to come to a  19 
consensus of agreement of what should and should not be included in the agreement. Wendy Fisher suggested a 2pm  20 
meeting on October 18th with staff and the few council members who she has not met with. She suggested having  21 
one person be the drafter and that be City Attorney, Steve Doxey.  22 
 23 
Wendy Fisher suggested starting the review at page 6 Section III Permitted Uses and Practices. Mayor Troy Stout  24 
said he was concerned that the city would be locking themselves into something that is unforeseen such as hover  25 
boards or something like that. Wendy Fisher said that could mean a low flying aircraft, this can become tricky when  26 
trying to cover the unforeseen. Let’s go over the things council definitely wants such a e-bikes but definitely does 27 
not want like motorcycles or four wheelers. Section III item C, Public Recreation and Educational Use – This is a 28 
fairly broad item this is where the city could define what you do not want in a broad prospective. Jason Thelin, City 29 
Council member said he thinks the city should keep it broad because the city can adapt the management program.  30 
Carla Merrill, City Council member, asked if unless it is mentioned in the prohibited portion then whatever item is  31 
not on there could be considered not prohibited. The trails should remain natural as well as have handicap access.  32 
Lon Lott, City Council member, suggested paving a trail from one parking lot to the other parking lot to the west of  33 
Lambert Park. This would give access to moms with strollers and wheelchairs. Jessica Smuin said these need to  34 
reflect the Conservation Easements Core Values, the trails should remain natural. Lon Lott said let’s save the city’s  35 
budget and use it for walking trails in other parks. Mayor Troy Stout suggested using the city’s budget for the 36 
Corridor Trail that could be asphalted for stroller and wheelchair access. Wendy Fisher said she is hearing the 37 
council definitely does not want motorized vehicles. 38 
 39 
Mayor Troy Stout said the city could put a boardwalk in for handicap access at the poppies. Shane Sorensen said 40 
council should consider that Alpine is an aging community and may need better access to Lambert Park and city  41 
trails. Wendy Fisher said we will need to find a way for ADA (American with Disabilities Act) and seniors to enjoy 42 
the park. Carla Merrill said that people with handicaps have always had access to Lambert Park. 43 
 44 
Greg Gordon, City Council member, said he would like to include people not overusing the trails due to 45 
maintenance issues or weather and we don’t want excessive noise. Craig Hall said this should be addressed and 46 
looked at in paragraph S. Wendy Fisher said the ability to close trails due to overuse or weather conditions could be 47 
put in the management plan portion of the conservation easement. Mayor Troy Stout asked what the council 48 
considered about lighting in Lambert Park. He believes other than the rodeo ground lighting should not be allowed 49 
unless it is on a person’s headgear or bike. Shane Sorensen said there is lighting in the restrooms in the park.  50 
 51 
Greg Gordon asked if the Utah Open Lands had considered Verti-ports Deliveries. Wendy Fisher said she has not 52 
seen that come up before. Craig Hall said in Salt Lake County’s landfill they have Zipline Drones that can carry a 53 
delivery of 4.5 lbs. of medical supplies. The drones can go in a 50-mile radius. Council can prohibit drones or 54 
commercial use of drones throughout Lambert Park. Lon Lott said make sure the document says Lambert Park can 55 
have helicopters for emergency use. Wendy Fisher asked the council how they felt about recreational use of drones. 56 
Drones and horses do not mix well. We could require a license to fly their recreational drone. We have had another 57 
city put in a racecourse for drone use. Jessica Smuin thinks the city should have some flexibility when it comes to 58 
limiting drones. Wendy Fisher said drones is one item we could address in the management document. 59 
 60 
Lon Lott asked about allowing a Cemetery in Lambert Park someday if needed. Mayor Troy Stout said he believes it 61 
is a good location for a cemetery if needed. It would be where the road comes in at Grove Drive. The area right now 62 
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is being used to store gravel for the city. Shane Sorensen said the area that Mayor Troy Stout pointed out would be 1 
eight acres and large enough for a cemetery. Lon Lott said if a future council decided a cemetery were to go in the 2 
city would need water, utilities, restroom, and asphalt. Wendy Fisher said wording could be added to the document 3 
for a cemetery or exclude that area from the easement altogether.  4 
 5 
Lon Lott asked for future water storage would the city consider the pond or would we need to go to the southeast  6 
area of the park. Wendy Fisher said on Page 6 of the document it addresses water resources, existing and 7 
future water uses. We could leave the area out of the document or put something in regarding an expansion of that  8 
area for the storage of water.  9 
 10 
Lon Lott said the cemetery may be better located at the south end and not a fixed location. Wendy Fisher asked what  11 
parameters are wanted for the cemetery. Where should the cemetery be located and how big will the council  12 
allow it. Lon Lott said this is hard to do because this could be end up being too restrictive. We could put it in the  13 
rodeo arena someday we do not know. Wendy Fisher said for the conservation easement sidebars need to be defined 14 
in order to balance this out. 15 
 16 
Greg Gordon asked if the city would consider allowing recreation on the expanded water storage. Mayor Troy Stout  17 
said he thinks recreation on the water can be done, just not motorized recreation vehicles. Wendy Fisher agreed with  18 
Mayor Troy Stout. Greg Gordon believes this should remain a natural park and have a pickleball court in a  19 
designated sideboard area. Lon Lott said if the document has a designated sideboard area it could be put in the rodeo  20 
grounds parking lot. Mayor Troy Stout said that would put the courts at a distance from any homes and it is already 21 
has a paved road. Shane Sorensen suggested considering renting the rodeo ground so that it may get more use.  22 
Wendy Fisher asked each council member if they were to vote tonight would they vote to leave the rodeo grounds  23 
be left in or out of the document. Jason Thelin said leave it out, Greg Gordon said leave it out, Carla Merrill said  24 
leave it in, Jessica Smuin said leave it out, and Lon Lott said the council needs to protect the rodeo ground as well as  25 
the rest of Lambert Park so it needs to be written into the document, if that is the way the City Council is going. 26 
 27 
Shane Sorensen said the current Alpine cemetery is ten acres. Lon Lott asked if the eight acres would be sufficient.  28 
Shane Sorensen said yes. Jessica Smuin said she prefers the southside of Lambert Park as a location for a future  29 
cemetery because of road access. Greg Gordon asked if the city would allow biking through the cemetery. Mayor  30 
Troy Stout said yes. 31 
 32 
Wendy Fisher asked council what their opinion on pickleball courts in Lambert Park would be. Most of the council  33 
thought the bowery area would be a good area because it is an already improved area with parking and lights.  34 
 35 
Wendy Fisher asked the city to get the borders of Lambert Park surveyed and a separate survey for the rodeo  36 
grounds. The rodeo grounds could be used as a special use area that way you can leave it in or out of the   37 
conservation easement but still have it on the map. Shane Sorensen said he would line up the surveyor.  38 
 39 
Wendy asked each council member if they had any further input for the conservation easement: 40 
 41 
Jason Thelin said he would like to see an emergency clause where the city can do anything that they see is needed.  42 
Having that decision made by the City Administrator. Craig Hall said on page 9 paragraph O the emergency clause 43 
is mentioned.  44 
 45 
Greg Gordon asked if Alpine could do something like Weeden Park in Draper. Wendy Fisher said the difference  46 
with that property is that part of it was privately donated.  47 
 48 
Greg Gordon asked if there would be a way in the conservation easement to dispose of parts of Lambert Park over  49 
the next 50 years if there was an emergency, say where utilities are related. Mayor Troy Stout said that could be  50 
financial decision. Jessica Smuin asked if there is an optional item. Shane Sorensen said sometimes it may be a time  51 
frame element in an emergency. Wendy Fisher said boundary line adjustments could be put in the document. Greg  52 
Gordon asked if the city could exchange land for land as in a trade.  53 
 54 
Jessica Smuin wants to make sure there is pedestrian access up Grove Drive to the trails. 55 
 56 
Lon Lott mentioned on page 5 section II – Rights of Grantee, what are the other rights that are not mentioned in  57 
the document. Wendy Fisher said they have approval rights in section 5. Utah Open Lands have a breech remedy on  58 
page 17 in both parties go to court. Page 20 section 11 enables us to not have this extinguished. Greg Gordon asked  59 
at the end of the day, you could condemn the property and the easement you have the domain. Craig Hall said he  60 
worries about the legal fees. Wendy Fisher said she is aware of one or two on the east coast that have done this. Utah  61 
open lands would not try to fight it if this was for a higher purpose. But if it not for a higher purpose we would talk  62 
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to that future city council and make them aware of that fact. 1 
 2 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR  3 
 4 

A. Approve City Council minutes of September 28, 2021 5 
B. Bond Release – The Ridge at Alpine Phase 5: $218,457.24 6 
C. Approval of Bid: Lambert Park Walking Trail, Blazing Trailz, $7/LF (Approx. 7,073 LF=$49,511) 7 

 8 
Shane Sorensen said the walking trail is a single loop of Lambert Park. The trail is approximately 7,073 linear feet of 9 
walking trail but this is just an estimate. Will Jones, Trail Committee Chair, said this walking trail is just graded dirt 10 
and will be designated for walking only. The trail will be 8 feet across. Greg Gordon said 40% of Draper City’s are 11 
hoof and boot trails in Draper. Will Jones said the Trail Committee wants to have multiple use trails. We will be 12 
removing rocks to allow jogging strollers to use this trail. The Trail Committee will start flagging the trail tomorrow 13 
as soon as this is approved. Will Jones said he had a concern with razor wire along the trail. There is a rock fence line 14 
along the trail with razor wire hanging over into the trail. The Trail Committee would like to move it, but we think the 15 
property owner (Josh James) is using for security. We would like to put it on top of the fence not hanging into the trail 16 
or we will have to find another location for the trail. We are trying to cross as few as trails as possible. Shane Sorensen 17 
said people were crossing over on to Josh James’ property and he does not think they will want to remove it. He said 18 
he will check to see where the property line is. Shane Sorensen thinks it is right on the line. Will Jones said the trail is 19 
a complete loop and is being completed with donated funds. Weather permitting will be done as soon as possible. 20 
They will haul out all vegetation removed while making this trail. Shane Sorensen said the city does have money in 21 
the budget for this but with the donation coming in, that budgeted money can be used for another trail item.  22 
 23 
Motion: Lon Lott moved to approve the consent calendar as proposed with the edits made by Lon Lott and Jason 24 
Thelin to the minutes of September 28, 2021. Carla Merrill seconded the motion. There were 5 Ayes and 0 Nays, as 25 
recorded below. The motion passed unanimously.  26 
 27 
      Ayes   Nays  28 
      Jessica Smuin 29 
      Carla Merrill 30 
      Lon Lott 31 
      Jason Thelin 32 
      Greg Gordon      33 
   34 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT    35 
 36 
Will Jones  37 
999 N Grove Drive 38 
Will Jones gave an update on Three Falls wall application. We could use a spray with concrete which has paint in it. 39 
The downside to that is that water will get behind it and the color could change. It will need to be redone within 3-5 40 
years which would be too costly. A company from Arizona has a system that goes deep into the rock and there is not 41 
as much discoloration. We will do a presentation on Monday October 18, 2021, in DRC (Development Review 42 
Committee). Will Jones has given his promise that he will not be done until the scar on the mountain is corrected.  43 
Mayor Troy Stout asked if we have missed the window to have the Arizona company come in to complete this project. 44 
Will said yes, the project will probably happen next spring. 45 
 46 
Will Jones continued saying that in the Three Falls development the curb and gutter are most of the way complete. 47 
The paving will be complete right after that, probably next week. The goal is to have the paving complete this year.  48 
Dominion Energy has slowed our project down to complete the line that they were paid for in January. Dominion 49 
Energy has been very difficult to work with, but at least they have started.   50 
 51 
V. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 52 
  53 

A. Financial Report  54 
 55 
Shane Sorensen went over the latest financial report. We had a software glitch with Caselle Connect System so they 56 
are being fixed and the latest sales tax has gone down a little, but he would not worry about it. The city is in good 57 
shape and the auditor report will be at the next meeting.   58 
 59 
VI. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 60 
 61 

A. Final Plat – Olde Moyle Mound PRD Plat C 62 
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 1 
Austin Roy said the Olde Moyle Mound PRD consists of 9 lots on 8.78 acres. The development is located partially 2 
in the CR-20,000 zone and partially in the CR 40,000 zone. Olde Moyle Mound has been approved as a Planned 3 
Residential Development (PRD). Plat C is the last phase of the Olde Moyle Mound Subdivision and consists of the 4 
remaining 2 lots on 2.37 acres. It does meet our ordinances there are no public trail and is compatible with our 5 
general plan. Staff and Planning Commission recommended to approve plat C. 6 
 7 
Motion: Jason Thelin moved to approve Olde Moyle Mound PRD Plat C as proposed. Greg Gordon seconded the 8 
motion. There were 5 Ayes and 0 Nays, as recorded below. The motion passed unanimously.  9 
 10 
      Ayes   Nays  11 
      Jessica Smuin 12 
      Carla Merrill 13 
      Lon Lott 14 
      Jason Thelin 15 
      Greg Gordon 16 
  17 
 18 
 19 

B. Zone Change – 542 S Alpine Highway: 20 
(Proposal to rezone a portion of the property from CR-40,000 to the BC Zone) 21 
 22 

Austin Roy said the developer pulled off this meeting. 23 
 24 

C. Roundabout Landscaping Re-Design 25 
 26 
Shane Sorensen said Ginger Belnap from Meadow Brook Design has been working on a plan to redo the 27 
landscaping at the roundabout. The plan includes removing the groundcover and many of the existing shrubs, adding 28 
plantings as per the plan, adding areas of decorative rock and potentially a sign. Most, if not all, of the trees will 29 
remain as part of the landscape. The exception would be an unhealthy tree or one that is creating a spacing issue that 30 
would impact the growth of other trees. He said Ginger Belnap has tried to get all colors for all seasons within the 31 
design. Once the council has approved the landscape plan, staff will determine how to move forward with 32 
implementing the plan and a schedule. 33 
 34 
Council members agreed that the monument sign should be in the roundabout. The sign would face Alpine Highway 35 
entrance to the city and have stone pillars not brick. Carla Merrill suggested the sign could be metal and have backing 36 
on it, maybe larger letters, and not have the City Hall address on the sign.  37 
 38 
Motion: Lon Lott Moved that the proposed landscaping plan be approved and get bids on lighting. Carla Merrill 39 
seconded the motion. There were 5 Ayes and 0 Nays, as recorded below. The motion passed unanimously.  40 
 41 
      Ayes   Nays  42 
      Jessica Smuin 43 
      Carla Merrill 44 
      Lon Lott 45 
      Jason Thelin 46 
      Greg Gordon 47 
VII. STAFF REPORTS 48 
  49 
Chief Brian Patten  50 
Chief Brian Patten asked if the council wanted to consider putting back on a future agenda open fires and fireworks 51 
for New Year’s Eve. Mayor Troy Stout said to put the issues on the next City Council agenda.  52 
 53 
Austin Roy  54 
Austin Roy said at Planning Commission meeting they had discussed the electronic sign ordinance and questioning if 55 
local schools were following our current ordinances. The Commission decided to table the discussion to be able to 56 
reach out to the sign companies and schools. When we reached out to the sign companies, they were willing to adjust 57 
the timing and brightness of the signs and train school employees.  58 
 59 
Craig Hall  60 
Craig Hall updated the council on the judge’s ruling in the Blue Bison case. The ruling judgement denies Blue Bison 61 
a public road into Draper.  62 
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 1 
Shane Sorensen 2 
Shane Sorensen updated the council of some items happening on future dates:  3 

• October 18th Smoot Park – curbs painted red  4 
• November 6th Fall clean up – Burgess Park  5 
• December 14th Employee Christmas Party - 5:30PM at Rodizio Grill in Provo 6 

 7 
Have city council retreat at city hall:  8 

• Pickleball courts  9 
• Peterson Park- master plans over the last 20 years and after the election and have the new people attend  10 
• Height and grading  11 
• Pavilion at Burgess Park 12 
• Direction for staff and council  13 

Carla Merrill asked if it would be an extended work session and Lon asked what it would look like, maybe a dinner. 14 
Shane said have it be two or three hours. 15 
 16 
Shane Sorensen and Fire Chief Patten have been meeting with an architect to make changes to the fire house.  17 
 18 
Utopia wants to come to a City Council meeting if the council is interested in hearing about a large build out project 19 
they are doing in Alpine. Residents would still need to find a provider, but it would offer something different. Craig 20 
Hall said Cedar Hills just went through this same thing. His report is very detailed and thorough.  21 
 22 
Park restrooms will be open until November 1st. The following parks will have restrooms available:  23 

• Smoot Canyon 24 
• Creekside Southside 25 
• Legacy Park 26 
• Bowery 27 
• Rodeo Grounds 28 

The cost of keeping the restrooms open year-round is too costly for the city.  29 
 30 
Lone Peak Safety Board meeting has been changed because of Fall Break. Lon Lott said he would attend the next 31 
meeting for Jason Thelin.  32 
 33 
Code enforcement position has been posted. 34 
 35 
Sidewalk on Westfield Road will not be completed until next spring. 36 
 37 
Overlay projects are finished but manholes are still being worked on and will be complete soon.  38 
 39 
VIII. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 40 
 41 
Carla Merrill  42 
 43 
Carla Merrill asked Chief Gwilliam about lack of citations being given in Alpine. Chief Brian Gwilliam said  44 
because of COVID-19 he had directed his officers to give out less citations in order to have less contact with the  45 
public. His officers were already getting exposed to COVID-19 daily, and he did not want to add to that.  46 
He said as COVID-19 numbers go down citations will increase.  47 
 48 
Carla Merrill asked if the Pack Well had asked for an easement. Shane Sorensen said the Packs recorded an 49 
easement. If they want to make or put in any changes a change application would need to be filled out. Carla 50 
Merrill asked if the Pack Well could purchase more water shares. Shane Sorensen said Packs deeded some of their  51 
water rights to the city and they went on our books and from there they were able to sell them to developers.  52 
 53 
Carla Merrill asked when a permanent sign will be put up by Mountainville Academy saying, “No Left-Hand 54 
Turns.” Shane Sorensen said not yet.  55 
 56 
Carla Merrill suggested to council that the city purchase the Bangerter property.  As a City Council we could have it  57 
be a town center or have more control of that property. Council agreed, saying the city should make an offer on the  58 
property. Craig Hall said if the city has a revenue bond, then we would not need to vote on the purchase. Otherwise 59 
the residents would need to vote on the purchase. If the city were to purchase the property and use it for the good of  60 
the public, such as a city center like the city of Holladay. Holladay has created an RDA (Retail Development Area).  61 
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Holladay had a developer help them with the project, we could do that as well.   1 
 2 
Jessica Smuin 3 
Jessica Smuin suggested hiring a parttime employee to manage recreation for the city. Shane Sorensen said he has  4 
money in the budget for a parttime position.  5 
 6 
Mayor Troy Stout 7 
Mayor Troy Stout said to make sure staff ordered flowerpots for Main Street, so that they are ready for spring.  8 
Shane Sorensen said he would take care of the order.   9 
 10 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION 11 
 12 
None held 13 
 14 
Motion: Carla Merrill moved to adjourn. Greg Gordon seconded the motion. There were 5 Ayes and 0 Nays, as 15 
recorded below. The motion passed unanimously.  16 
 17 
      Ayes   Nays  18 
      Jessica Smuin 19 
      Carla Merrill 20 
      Lon Lott 21 
      Jason Thelin 22 
      Greg Gordon 23 
Adjourned 8:39 p.m. 24 





PROJECT: CUP Filter Station PAY PERIOD: 2 Oct-21

ITEM  CONTRACT ITEMS          QUANTITY          EARNINGS

NO. NATURE OF WORK Qty Units Unit Price Bid Amt. This Month To Date This Month To Date

Base Bid

1 Mobilization 1.00 LS $26,326.00 $26,326.00 0.19 0.89 $5,000.00 $23,428.00

2 SWPPP 1.00 LS $1,891.00 $1,891.00 0.30 1.00 $567.00 $1,891.00

3 Filter Building 1.00 LS $128,778.00 $128,778.00 0.00 0.50 $64,389.00

4 Building Piping and Filter Installation 1.00 LS $130,730.00 $130,730.00 0.20 1.00 $26,146.00 $130,730.00

5 Electrical, Mechanical, and Communications 1.00 LS $91,260.00 $91,260.00 0.50 0.50 $45,630.00 $45,630.00

6 Site Piping and Site Work 1.00 LS $139,529.00 $139,529.00 0.18 0.98 $25,000.00 $136,623.01

Subtotal $518,514.00 $102,343.00 $402,691.01

Change Order #1

1 Silverleaf Well Modifications 1.00 LS $48,900.00 $48,900.00 0.00 1.00 $48,900.00

Change Order #2

1 Silverleaf Waterline 1.00 LS $26,785.52 $26,785.52 0.50 1.00 $13,392.52 $26,785.52

Total $594,199.52 TOTAL $115,735.52 $478,376.53

AMOUNT RETAINED $5,786.78 $23,918.83

RETAINAGE RELEASED

PREVIOUS RETAINAGE $18,132.05

PREVIOUS PAYMENTS $344,508.95

AMOUNT DUE $109,948.74 $109,948.75
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 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
Alpine City, Utah 
  
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Alpine City, Utah 
(City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I 
conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
  
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2021, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3-11, budgetary comparison and pension 
information on pages 46-49 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial 
statements.   I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, I have also issued a report dated September 
13, 2021, on my consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
   
 
Greg Ogden, 
Certified Public Accountant 
Springville, Utah 
September 25, 2021 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
This document is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Alpine City for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021. Alpine City management encourages readers to consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with the financial statements which follow this section. To help the reader with navigation 
of this report, the city's activities are classified in the following manner: government activities refers to general 
administration, parks, streets, garbage, planning etc., while business-type activities refers to operations such 
as the sewer, storm drain, water, and pressurized irrigation. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
• The total net position of Alpine City increased by $6,089,099 totaling $88,455,197. The governmental net 
position increased by $2,705,459 and the business-type net position increased by $3,383,640. 
 
• The total net position of governmental and business-type activities is $88,455,197 and is made up of 
$72,406,821 in capital assets, such as land, infrastructure and equipment and $16,048,375 in other net 
position. The $16,048,375 in other net position is made up of $4,830,828 which is restricted for capital 
projects, debt service and endowments.  Finally, the remaining $11,217,547 is unrestricted assets. 
 
• Total liabilities of the City increased by $51,297. The liabilities for governmental activities Increased by 
$386,152.  The business-type activities liabilities decreased by ($334,855). 
 
REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE  
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Alpine City’s basic financial 
statements. Alpine City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of 
Alpine City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
 
• The statement of net position presents information on all of Alpine City’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Alpine City is improving or deteriorating. 
However, you will also need to consider other nonfinancial factors. 
 
• The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the 
fiscal year reported. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, all of the current year’s revenues and 
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. Both of the government-wide 
financial statements distinguish functions of Alpine City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The government-
wide financial statements can be found on pages13-15 of this report. 
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REPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Alpine City also uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided 
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
• Governmental funds - These funds are used to account for the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. These fund statements focus on how money flows into 
and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are 
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and other 
financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide detailed 
short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental 
fund information helps users determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent 
in the near future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between 
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds in a reconciliation included with the fund financial statements. 
 
The only major governmental funds (as determined by generally accepted accounting principles) are the 
General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund. The balances of the governmental funds are determined to be 
non-major and are included in the combining statements within this report. 
 
• Proprietary funds - Alpine City maintains one type of proprietary fund, the enterprise fund. Enterprise funds 
are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. Alpine City uses enterprise funds to account for its Pressurized Irrigation Utility, Culinary Water 
Utility, Sewer Utility and Storm Drain Operation. As determined by generally accepted accounting principles, 
the pressurized irrigation, culinary water, storm drain and, sewer enterprise funds meet the criteria for major 
fund classification. 
 
• Fiduciary funds - These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting method used 
for these funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.   

 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In 
the case of Alpine City, assets exceed liabilities by $88,455,197. 
 
By far the largest portion of Alpine City’s net position (84%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, infrastructure assets, machinery and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those 
assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  
(In thousands of dollars) 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020
12,360$            10,198$              8,512$             8,991$              
42,152              41,081                33,513             29,891              

Deferred Outflow 79                     82                       202                  232                   
Total Assets 54,590              51,361                42,227             39,114              

179                   355                     3,278               3,736                
2,458                1,896                  319                  195                   

Deferred Inflow 1,983                1,845                  146                  81                     
Total Liabilities 4,620                4,096                  3,742               4,012                

42,102              40,983                30,305             26,341              
3,516                2,318                  1,315               1,973                
4,352                3,963                  6,866               6,787                

Total Net Position 49,970$            47,264$              38,485$           35,101$            
Unrestricted
Restricted
Net Invested in Capital Assets,

Net Position:

Other Liabilities

Governmental       Activities Business-type Activities

Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets

Long-term Debt Outstanding



 6 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
 (In thousands of dollars) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services 1,719$              1,514$                3,154$             3,080$              
Operating Grants and Contributions 739                   -                         -                       -                        
Capital Grants and Contributions 2,205                1,597                  3,381               1,154                

General Revenues
Property Taxes 1,991                1,881                  -                       -                        
Sales and Use Taxes 1,823                1,536                  -                       -                        
Other Taxes 798                   768                     -                       -                        
Other Revenues 46                     214                     43                    153                   
Settlement 253                   400                     -                       -                        

9,573                7,910                  6,578               4,387                

Expenses
General Government 1,084                1,112                  -                       -                        
Public Safety 2,398                2,405                  -                       -                        
Streets/Public Works 2,094                1,784                  -                       -                        
Parks and Recreation 559                   737                     -                       -                        
Cemetery 162                   171                     -                       -                        
Garbage 570                   543                     -                       -                        
Interest Expense -                       -                         -                       -                        
Water -                       -                         878                  777                   
Sewer -                       -                         1,102               1,056                
Pressurized Irrigation -                       -                         966                  1,165                
Storm Drain -                       -                         249                  225                   

Total Expenses 6,868                6,752                  3,194               3,223                

Increase in Net Position Before Transfers 2,705                1,157                  3,384               1,164                
Transfers -                       -                         -                       -                        

Change in Net Position 2,705                1,157                  3,384               1,164                
Net Position Beginning 47,265              46,108                35,102             33,938              
Net Position Ending 49,970$            47,265$              38,486$           35,102$            

Business-type ActivitiesGovernmental       Activities

Total Revenues
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The following graphs display the government-wide activities as reflected in the above tables.  Program 
revenues included in the first graph are fees charged for specific services performed by the various 
governmental functions.  General revenues such as property taxes, sales and uses taxes, etc. are not 
included. 
 

Expense and Program Revenues -Governmental Activities 
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$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 
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$2,500,000 
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Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities  
 

Charge for Services
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Contributions
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Extraordinary gain
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It can be seen from the following charts, the main revenues in the business-type activities are in charges for 
services, with 48 percent of the revenues coming from this source.  The revenues from capital grants and 
contributions represent the value of infrastructure systems donated to the City via subdivisions being 
developed and can vary substantially from year to year. 
 
 

Expense and Program Revenues – Business-Type Activities 
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Revenues by Source – Business-Type Activities 
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ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS 
 
The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. 
As of June 30, 2021; the City’s governmental funds (General, Capital Projects and Debt Service) reported 
combined fund equity of $8,083,535. The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. All activities 
which are not required tube accounted for in separate funds either by state or local ordinance or by a desire 
to maintain matching of revenues and expenses is accounted for in this fund.  
 
As stated earlier, the City maintains several enterprise funds to account for the business-type activities of 
the City. The separate fund statements included in this report provide the same information for business-
type activities as is provided in the government-wide financial statements. However, the difference is that 
the fund statements provide much more detail. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
During the fiscal year, the General Fund original budget was amended to: 
 

• Transfer funds from General Fund to Capital Projects for future projects. 
• Pending lawsuit was settled in the favor of the City. 
• Various park and infrastructure improvements were completed. 

 
 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital assets - Alpine City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities 
as of June 30, 2021, amounts to $75,664,906 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings and systems, improvements, infrastructure (streets, sidewalks, curb and 
gutter, bridges, etc.), and machinery and equipment. The total increase in the City’s investment in fixed 
assets for the current year was $4,692,434. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 

• A new parking lot and restroom at one of the City parks was completed. 
• A new well is in construction and should be completed in FY 2022 
• Asset contributions from developers in new subdivisions being added to the City. 
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ALPINE CITY’S CAPITAL ASSETS 
(Net of Depreciation, in thousands of dollars) 

 
 

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the footnotes to this financial report and also the 
supplemental section. 
 
Long-term debt - At June 30, 2021, the City had total debt outstanding of $3,455,604. The majority of 
Alpine City’s long term debt, $3,208,000 is debt secured solely by specific revenue sources (i.e., revenue 
bonds within the Water and Pressurized Irrigation Funds).  The City refinanced a bond series of 2010 to a 
lower interest rate and added $1,050,000 in bond proceeds for future water well. 
 
 

ALPINE CITY’S OUTSTANDING DEBT 
(In thousands of dollars) 

 
 
Additional information on the outstanding debt obligations of the City can be found in the footnotes to this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

Land 22,775$            22,775$              456$                456$                 
Water Shares -                       -                         73                    73                     
Construction in Progress -                       -                         794                  -                        

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings and Structures 2,014                1,913                  215                  215                   
Improvements and Infrastructure 40,097              38,116                45,714             41,989              
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 1,447                1,172                  1,842               1,769                

Total 66,333              63,976                49,094             44,502              
Less Accumulated Depreciation (24,181)            (22,895)              (15,582)            (14,611)             

Total Capital Assets 42,152$            41,081$              33,512$           29,891$            

Governmental       Activities Business-type Activities

2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenue Bonds -$                     -$                       3,208$             3,550$              
Capital Leases 50                     98                       -                       -                        
Net Pension Liability 22                     160                     20                    141                   
Compensated Absences 106                   97                       50                    45                     

Total 178$                 355$                   3,278$             3,736$              

Governmental       Activities Business-type Activities
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 

• The Unemployment rate for Utah County (of which Alpine is part) was 2.3% compared with the 
State unemployment rate of 2.8% this has decreased from the previous year due to the pandemic 
across the world has been controlled and we are seeing increasing jobs and demand.   
 

• Alpine is continuing to see an increase in building permits and the occupation of vacant homes 
along with new subdivision developments. 

 
• The major projects budgeted for next year includes the following: 

 
o New well still in construction:  $793,706 
o Park Improvements:  $216,945 
o Street improvements:  $719,954 

 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Alpine City’s finances for all those with an 
interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to: 
 
City Finance Officer 
20 N Main St 
Alpine, UT 84004 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business Type 
Activities Totals

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,392,459$         6,928,146$         13,320,605$         
Accounts Receivable 2,425,462           269,389              2,694,851             
Prepaid Expenses 25,662                -                          25,662                  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,843,583           7,197,535           16,041,118           

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,516,273           1,314,555           4,830,828             
Capital Assets

Non Depreciable 22,775,044         1,323,234           24,098,278           
Depreciable Assets (net of Depreciation) 19,377,068         32,189,561         51,566,629           
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 45,668,384         34,827,350         80,495,734           

TOTAL ASSETS 54,511,967         42,024,885         96,536,852           
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 78,530                202,497              281,027                

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES 54,590,497         42,227,382         96,817,879           

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 2,458,431           318,643              2,777,074             
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,458,431           318,643              2,777,074             

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Due Within One Year 142,112              378,589              520,701                
Net Pension Liability 22,136                19,559                41,695                  
Due in More Than One Year 14,301                2,879,356           2,893,657             

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 178,549              3,277,504           3,456,053             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,636,980           3,596,147           6,233,127             
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,983,354           146,202              2,129,556             

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
 RESOURCES 4,620,334           3,742,349           8,362,683             

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 42,102,026         30,304,795         72,406,821           
Restricted 3,516,273           1,314,555           4,830,828             
Unrestricted 4,351,864           6,865,683           11,217,547           

TOTAL NET POSITION 49,970,164$       38,485,033$       88,455,197$         

JUNE 30, 2021
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ALPINE CITY

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements
13



Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities
  General Government 1,084,173$              369,659$                 -$                              -$                              
  Public Safety 2,398,087                632,412                    738,985                    -                                
  Streets 2,094,179                -                                -                                2,098,681                
  Parks and Recreation 558,873                    12,206                      -                                106,283                    
  Cemetery 162,401                    69,786                      -                                -                                
  Garbage 569,857                    634,471                    -                                -                                

   Total Governmental Activities 6,867,570                1,718,534                738,985                    2,204,964                

Business-type Activities
  Water 877,600                    862,379                    -                                1,142,856                
  Sewer 1,102,324                1,000,397                -                                382,161                    
  Pressurized Irrigation 965,545                    1,081,495                -                                969,529                    
  Storm Drain 248,717                    209,467                    -                                886,754                    

   Total Business-type Activities 3,194,186                3,153,738                -                                3,381,300                

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 10,061,756$            4,872,272$              738,985$                 5,586,264$              

General Revenues
  Property Taxes
  Vehicle Taxes
  Sales Taxes
  Franchise Taxes
  Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Extraordinary Item
  Lawsuit Settlement
     Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

ALPINE CITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

Program Revenues
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

(714,514)$                 -                                (714,514)$                   
(1,026,690)                -                                (1,026,690)                  

4,502                        -                                4,502                          
(440,384)                   -                                (440,384)                     

(92,615)                     -                                (92,615)                       
64,614                      -                                64,614                        

(2,205,087)                -                                (2,205,087)                  

-                                1,127,635                 1,127,635                   
-                                280,234                    280,234                      
-                                1,085,480                 1,085,480                   
-                                847,503                    847,503                      

-                                3,340,852                 3,340,852                   

(2,205,087)                3,340,852                 1,135,765                   

1,990,509                 -                                1,990,509                   
126,278                    -                                126,278                      

1,822,520                 -                                1,822,520                   
671,886                    -                                671,886                      

46,467                      42,787                      89,254                        

252,887                    -                                252,887                      
4,910,546                 42,787                      4,953,333                   
2,705,459                 3,383,640                 6,089,098                   

47,264,705               35,101,393               82,366,098                 

49,970,164$             38,485,033$             88,455,196$               

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government
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ALPINE CITY
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS  General 
 Capital 
Projects 

 Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,861,560$        -$                       -$                       1,861,560$         
Accounts Receivable 2,425,462          -                         -                         2,425,462           
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,719,989          4,530,899          1,796,284          8,047,172           
Prepaid Expenses 25,662               -                         -                         25,662                 

TOTAL ASSETS 6,032,672$        4,530,899$        1,796,284$        12,359,855$       

LIABILITIES, DEFFERED INFLOW OF
 RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 240,688$           152,781$           -$                       393,469$            
Developer Completion Bonds Payable 538,906             -                         -                         538,906               
Infrastructure Protection Bonds Payable -                         1,526,055          -                         1,526,055           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 779,594             1,678,836          -                         2,458,431           

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES 1,817,889          -                         -                         1,817,889           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
INFLOW OF RESOURCES 2,597,483          1,678,836          -                         4,276,320           

FUND BALANCE
Non-Spendable 25,662               -                         691,835             717,497               
Restricted 1,719,989          -                         1,104,449          2,824,438           
Assigned -                         2,852,062          -                         2,852,062           
Unassigned 1,689,538          -                         -                         1,689,538           

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,435,189          2,852,062          1,796,284          8,083,535           

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 6,032,672$        4,530,899$        1,796,284$        12,359,855$       

Governmental-type Activities

JUNE 30, 2021

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements
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ALPINE CITY
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCES 8,083,535$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
 resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 42,152,111          

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions represent a
 consumption of net position that applies to future periods and
 therefore, are not reported in the funds. 78,530                 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. (178,548)              

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions represent a source
 of resources that applies to future periods and therefore, are not
 reported in the funds. (165,465)              

TOTAL NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 49,970,164$        

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

JUNE 30, 2021
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ALPINE CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

REVENUES  General  Capital Projects 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
Taxes 4,611,192$         -$                       -$                       4,611,192$         
Licenses and Permits 825,680              -                         -                         825,680              
Intergovernmental 1,433,006           -                         -                         1,433,006           
Charge for Services 830,994              -                         20,814                851,808              
Fines and Forfeitures 41,045                -                         -                         41,045                
Interest 19,765                18,318                8,384                  46,467                
Miscellaneous -                         -                         -                         -                         

TOTAL REVENUES 7,761,682           18,318                29,198                7,809,198           

EXPENDITURES
General Government 1,546,065           -                         -                         1,546,065           
Public Safety 2,410,968           -                         -                         2,410,968           
Streets 1,128,727           -                         -                         1,128,727           
Parks and Recreation 336,206              -                         -                         336,206              
Cemetery 161,031              -                         -                         161,031              
Garbage 575,846              -                         -                         575,846              
Capital Outlay 173,906              269,430              9,976                  453,311              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,332,748           269,430              9,976                  6,612,154           

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 1,428,934           (251,112)             19,222                1,197,044           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Impact Fees -                         -                         85,169                85,169                
Contributions from Builders -                         -                         -                         -                         
Lawsuit Settlement 252,887              -                         -                         252,887              
Transfers from Other Funds -                         600,000              -                         600,000              
Transfer to Other Funds (600,000)             -                         -                         (600,000)             

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) (347,113)             600,000              85,169                338,056              

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND USES 1,081,821           348,888              104,391              1,535,100           

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,353,368           2,503,174           1,691,893           6,548,435           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,435,189$         2,852,062$         1,796,284$         8,083,535$         

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

Governmental-type Activities
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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ALPINE CITY

IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
 EXPENDITURES AND USES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 1,535,100$            

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activites
 are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement
 of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
 lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
 were exceeded by depreciation in the current period. 1,070,689              

Issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
 governmental funds. The repayment of the principal of long-term debt
 consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. This
 amount is the net difference in the treatment of long-term debt and
 related items. 48,059                   

Some revenues and expenses reported in the statement of activities do not add
 to or require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
 reported as revenues or expenditures in the governmental funds. 51,611                   

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 2,705,459$            

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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ALPINE CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

 Water  Sewer 
 Pressure 
Irrigation  Storm Drain 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
 OF RESOURCES

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,661,881$      2,508,329$      1,094,277$      663,659$         6,928,146$        
Accounts Receivable, Net of 
   Allowance for Uncollectible 72,896             90,843             89,802             15,849             269,389             
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,734,777        2,599,172        1,184,080        679,507           7,197,535          

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 464,721           136,397           565,718           147,720           1,314,555          
Capital Assets

Construction in progress -                       -                       793,707           793,707             
Water Shares 73,400             -                       -                       -                       73,400               
Land 219,000           21,072             -                       216,055           456,127             
Building and Structures 169,103           45,971             -                       -                       215,074             
Improvements 15,985,983      8,222,922        14,457,135      7,047,755        45,713,796        
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 1,169,992        305,907           366,584           -                       1,842,483          
Less Accumulated Depreciation (6,278,399)       (3,371,413)       (4,339,912)       (1,592,068)       (15,581,792)       
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 11,803,801      5,360,855        11,843,232      5,819,463        34,827,350        

TOTAL ASSETS 14,538,577      7,960,027        13,027,311      6,498,970        42,024,885        
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 24,717             22,809             148,833           6,138               202,497             

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
 OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 14,563,294      7,982,836        13,176,144      6,505,108        42,227,382        
LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
 OF RESOURCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 140,212           72,331             59,728             717                  272,988             
Customer Deposits Payable 36,100             1,400               -                       -                       37,500               
Developer Deposits 8,155               -                       -                       -                       8,155                 
Compensated Absences 2,589               24,285             5,043               8,672               40,589               
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt -                       -                       338,000           -                       338,000             
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 187,057           98,016             402,771           9,389               697,232             

NONCURRENT LIABLILITES
Compensated Absences 561                  6,915               -                       1,880               9,356                 
Net Pension Liability 6,967               6,429               4,433               1,730               19,559               
Bonds Payable -                       -                       2,870,000        -                       2,870,000          
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 7,528               13,344             2,874,433        3,610               2,898,915          

TOTAL LIABILITIES 194,585           111,360           3,277,204        12,999             3,596,147          
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 52,079             48,059             33,130             12,934             146,202             

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED
 INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 246,664           159,419           3,310,334        25,933             3,742,349          
NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 11,339,079      5,224,459        8,069,514        5,671,743        30,304,795        
Restricted

Impact Fees 464,721           136,397           223,420           147,720           972,258             
Bond Proceeds -                       -                       342,297           -                       342,297             

Unrestricted 2,512,830        2,462,562        1,230,579        659,712           6,865,683          

TOTAL NET POSITION 14,316,630$     7,823,417$      9,865,811$      6,479,175$      38,485,034$      

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds  Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 
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ALPINE CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

 Water  Sewer 
 Pressure 
Irrigation  Storm Drain 

OPERATING REVENUES
Charge for Services 813,953$           989,562$           978,265$           185,767$           2,967,547$        
Connection Fees 38,765               10,835               58,773               -                         108,373             
Miscellaneous 9,660                 -                         44,458               23,700$             77,819               

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 862,379             1,000,397          1,081,496          209,467             3,153,738          

Salaries, Wages and Benefits 229,760             233,244             198,057             81,823               742,884             
Operations 287,221             690,661             410,270             28,365               1,416,516          
Depreciation 360,619             178,419             293,009             138,529             970,577             

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 877,600             1,102,324          901,336             248,717             3,129,977          

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (15,221)              (101,927)            180,160             (39,251)              23,761               

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant Revenues -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Impact Fees 134,760             37,567               132,158             17,600               322,085             
Interest Income 15,367               12,422               11,054               3,944                 42,787               
Interest and Amortization Expense -                         -                         (64,208)              -                         (64,208)              

TOTAL NON-OPERATING 
REVENUES (EXPENSES) 150,127             49,989               79,004               21,544               300,665             

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS 134,906             (51,938)              259,164             (17,707)              324,426             

Capital Contributions 1,008,096          344,594             837,371             869,154             3,059,215          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,143,002          292,656             1,096,535          851,447             3,383,641          

TOTAL NET POSITION AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,173,628        7,530,761          8,769,276          5,627,728          35,101,393        

TOTAL NET POSITION AT
END OF YEAR 14,316,630$      7,823,417$        9,865,811$        6,479,175$        38,485,034$      

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

OPERATING EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

 Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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ALPINE CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

 Water  Sewer 
 Pressure 
Irrigation  Storm Drain 

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers 855,512$          995,834$          1,077,523$       207,419$          3,136,289$       
Payment to Suppliers (224,057)           (677,390)           (355,454)           (36,662)             (1,293,563)        
Payment to Employees (248,255)           (248,286)           (183,649)           (84,406)             (764,597)           

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 383,201            70,158              538,420            86,350              1,078,129         

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer to/from other funds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

NET CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
   RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Impact Fees 134,760            37,567              132,158            17,600              322,085            
Grant Proceeds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Acquisition of Capital Assets (472,300)           (40,475)             (926,747)           (93,583)             (1,533,105)        
Bond Payments -                        -                        (342,000)           -                        (342,000)           
Interest and Amortization Expense -                        -                        (64,208)             -                        (64,208)             

NET CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
   RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (337,540)           (2,908)               (1,200,797)        (75,983)             (1,617,227)        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest Income 15,367              12,422              11,054              3,944                42,787              

NET CASH FLOWS FROM 
   INVESTING ACTIVITIES 15,367              12,422              11,054              3,944                42,787              

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND
   CASH EQUIVALENTS 61,028              79,672              (651,323)           14,312              (496,311)           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
   AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,065,574         2,565,054         2,311,319         797,066            8,739,013         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
   AT END OF YEAR 3,126,602$       2,644,726$       1,659,996$       811,378$          8,242,702$       

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds  Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 
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ALPINE CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

 Water  Sewer 
 Pressure 
Irrigation  Storm Drain 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH FLOWS
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) (15,221)$           (101,927)$         180,160$          (39,251)$           23,761$            
Adjustments

Depreciation 360,619            178,419            293,009            138,529            970,577            
Changes in Net Position

Accounts Receivable, Net (6,975)               (4,663)               (3,973)               (2,048)               (17,658)             
Deferred Outflows - Pensions 1,006                928                   27,263              250                   29,447              
Accounts Payable 63,164              13,271              54,816              (8,298)               122,953            
Customer Deposits Payable 108                   100                   -                        -                        208                   
Compensated Absences 648                   2,623                (38)                    2,171                5,404                
Net Pension Liability (43,252)             (39,913)             (27,514)             (10,742)             (121,421)           
Deferred Inflows - Pensions 23,103              21,320              14,697              5,738                64,858              

NET CASH FLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 383,201$          70,158$            538,420$          86,350$            1,078,129$       

Contributions of Capital Assets 
from Developers 1,008,096$       344,594$          837,371$          869,154$          3,059,215$       

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds  Total 
Enterprise 

Funds 
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ALPINE CITY, UTAH 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021                                                                                                                                                   
 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
The financial statements of Alpine City, Utah (City) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The following 
is a summary of the more significant of the City’s accounting policies. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity 
 
Alpine City was incorporated in 1855 under the laws of the State of Utah. The City is a municipal corporation governed 
by an elected five-member Council and Mayor. The City provides services under the following organizational structure: 
 

General Government: Mayor and City Council, City Administrator, Justice Court, Treasurer and 
Recorder 

 
Public Safety: Police, Fire and Emergency Medical Services, (through Lone Peak Public Safety 
District), Building Inspection, Planning and Zoning 

 
Public Works: Streets, Water, Sewer, Garbage, Pressurized Irrigation and Storm Drains 

 
Parks and Recreation: Parks, Cemetery and Recreation 
 

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government and other organizations that are included to ensure that 
the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the City consists of all funds, departments, 
boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the City. The City has no component units and is not a 
component unit of another entity. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The City’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net position, a 
statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net 
position and statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole. For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Individual funds are not displayed but 
the statements distinguish governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and general revenues, from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support. 
 
The statement of net position presents the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of the 
City at year-end. 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function 
of the City’s governmental activities and for each identifiable activity of the business-type activities of the City. Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and are clearly identifiable to that particular function.  
The City does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 
The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function or segment offset by program revenues directly 
connected to the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund 
or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional 
activity. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers who directly benefit from goods or services provided by a 
given function or activity; 2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities, including 
restricted investment income; and 3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or 
rehabilitation of capital assets. 
 
For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining factor for charges for services is which 
function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the determining factor is to which function the revenues 
are restricted. 
 
Taxes, interest, and other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general 
revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental 
function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or 
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial 
statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level.  Fund financial 
statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds. 
 
Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite columns for non-
major funds. 
 
Fund Accounting – The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year.  A fund is a fiscal and 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses two types of categories: governmental and 
proprietary. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are 
financed.  Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. 
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or 
may not be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be liquidated. The City reports the 
difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities as fund balance. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 
The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities of the City 
(other than those financed by proprietary funds). 

 
Proprietary Fund – Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net 
position, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise or internal service. 
 
The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

 
The water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water production, treatment and distribution operations. 
The sewer fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer treatment operations. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 

The pressure irrigation fund accounts for the activities of the City’s pressurized irrigation distribution 
operations. 
 
The storm drain fund accounts for the activities of the City’s storm drain operations. 

 
Measurement Focus 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus.  All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the City are included on the 
statement of net position. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on 
the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports the sources (i.e., 
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial 
resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial 
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include reconciliation with brief 
explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the governmental fund 
statements. 
 
Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of these 
funds are included on the statements of net position. The statements of changes in fund net position present increases 
(i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position. The statement of cash flows provides information about 
how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial 
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. At the fund 
reporting level, governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary funds use the accrual 
basis of accounting at both reporting levels. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting 
arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of unearned revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus 
expenditures. 
 
Revenues – Exchange Transactions – Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and 
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified 
accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which the resources are 
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year 
or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the 
City, the phrase “available for exchange transactions” means expected to be received within 60 days of year-end. 
 
Revenues – Non-exchange Transactions – Non-exchange transactions in which the City receives value without directly 
giving equal value in return, include sales tax, property tax, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from 
sales tax is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale taxes place. Revenue from property taxes is recognized 
in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify 
the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, 
in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in 
which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from 
non-exchange transactions also must be available (i.e., collected by June 30, 2021 for property taxes and within 60 
days for other non-exchange transactions) before it can be recognized. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 
Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual: sales 
taxes, property taxes, special assessments, and federal and state grants. 
 
Unearned Revenue – Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have 
been satisfied. This unearned revenue is expected to be collected in the next fiscal year. 
 
Expenses/Expenditures – On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred, 
if measurable. On the modified accrual basis, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which 
the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable. 
 
Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 
 

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial 
institutions, and deposits in other types of accounts or cash management pools that have the general 
characteristics of demand deposit accounts. The City’s investment policy allows for the investment of 
funds in time certificates of deposit with federally insured depositories, investment in the Utah Public 
Treasurer’s Investment Fund (Fund) and other investments allowed by the State of Utah’s Money 
Management Act.  Investments are reported at fair value. The Fund operates in accordance with state 
laws and regulations.  The reported value of the City’s cash in the Fund is the same as the fair value of 
the Fund shares. 

 
Cash equivalents are generally considered short-term highly liquid investments with maturities of three 
months or less from the purchase date. Investments are recorded at fair value in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 72 Fair Value Measurement and Application. Accordingly, the change in fair value of 
investments is recognized as an increase or decrease to investment assets and investment income. 

 
Restricted assets 

 
Cash which is restricted to a particular use due to statutory, budgetary or bonding requirements is 
classified as “restricted cash” on the statement of net position and on the balance sheets. Restricted cash 
would be spent first and then unrestricted resources would be used when the restricted funds are depleted. 

 
Receivables 

 
All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts, where 
applicable. 
 

Interfund Balances 
 

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are 
classified as interfund receivables/payables. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and 
business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for any net residual amounts due 
between governmental and business-type activities, which are reclassified and presented as internal 
balances. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 
Capital assets 

 
General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary 
funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in governmental funds or contributions. The City 
reports these assets in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net 
position but does not report these assets in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets 
utilized by proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the government-
wide statement of net position and in the proprietary fund’s statement of net position. 
 
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are capitalized at historical cost, if 
purchased and at fair market value at the date of the gift, if donated.  Improvements to capital assets are 
capitalized. Major additions are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs which do not improve or extend 
the life of the respective assets are charged to expense. 
 
All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, rights-of-way, water rights, and construction in 
progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.  
Useful lives for infrastructure were estimated based on the City’s historical records of improvements and 
replacements. 
 
Capital asset depreciation is recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as 
follows: 

 
Classification Range of Lives 
Buildings and structures  20-50 years 
Improvements and infrastructure  10-50 years 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles  5-15 years 

 
Compensated absences 

 
Accumulated unpaid vacation is accrued as incurred based on the years of service for each employee.  
Vacation is accumulated on a monthly basis. Proprietary funds expense all accrued vacation amounts 
when incurred. Governmental funds report an expenditure as the vacation is paid. Compensated leave 
time may be accrued up to 160 hours. The accumulated sick leave is earned at a rate of one day per 
month. Sick pay amounts are charged to expenditures when incurred.  Employees may accumulate up to 
90 days of sick leave. Employees who retire are offered the choice to be paid 25% of accumulated sick 
leave at retirement or to have City pay the cost of the employee’s health insurance for one month for every 
two days of sick leave until the employee can qualify for Medicare. 
 
The total compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. 
Proprietary funds report the total compensated absences liability in each individual fund at the fund 
reporting level. Governmental funds report the compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level 
only when it is due to for payment in the current fiscal year. 

 
Long-term liabilities 

 
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 
In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely 
manner, and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of these funds.  Bonds are 
recognized as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements only when they are due for payment 
in the current fiscal year. 
 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes include a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expenditure) until then. The City current has deferred outflows of resources 
related to debt refunding and pensions. 

 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes include a separate section deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until then. The governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources related to 
property taxes and pensions. 

 
Pensions 

 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plans (URS), including additions to/deductions from URS’s fiduciary 
net position, have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
Fund equity 

 
Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.”  Fund equity 
for all other reporting is classified as “net position.” 
 
Fund Balance – Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current 
liabilities. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific 
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are divided into five categories 
as follows: 
 

Non-spendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either a) not in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be 
maintained. Fund balance amounts related to inventory, prepaid expenses and 
permanent endowments (such as cemetery perpetual care) are classified as non-
spendable. 
 
Restricted – This classification includes net fund resources that are subject to external 
constraints that have been placed on the use of the resources either a) imposed by 
creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation. The City’s remaining balances of Class C roads and impact fees 
are restricted. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 
Committed – This classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific 
purposes established by formal action of the City Council, which is the City’s highest 
level of decision-making authority.  Fund balance commitments can only be removed or 
changed by the same type of action (for example, resolution) of the City Council. This 
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 
The City has not committed any fund balance amounts. 
 
Assigned – This classification includes amounts that the City intends to be used for a 
specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. These are established by the 
City Council. This classification includes the remaining positive fund balances for 
governmental funds other than the general fund.  
 
Unassigned – This classification holds the remainder of the fund equity and is the 
amount available for the city to spend. 
 

Net Position Flow Assumptions – The City has established a flow assumption policy to use restricted net 
position first before using unrestricted net position. 
 
Fund Balance Flow Assumptions – The City has established a flow assumption policy to use restricted 
fund balance before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the 
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, it is the City’s policy to use 
the fund balance in the following order: 1) Committed, 2) Assigned, and 3) Unassigned. 
 
Net Position – The net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. The net position 
component, net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or 
improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds. The net position is reported as 
restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling legislation or through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. The 
balance of the net position is reported as unrestricted. 
 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 
 
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the 
proprietary funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that 
are the primary activity of each fund. All other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating 
including investment earnings, interest expense, and the gain or loss on the disposition of capital assets. 
 

Contributions of Capital 
 
Contributions of capital reported in proprietary fund financial statements and the government-wide financial 
statements arise from outside contributions of capital assets (e.g. developers), and grants or outside 
contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 
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NOTE 1 - (CONTINUED) 
 
Inter-Fund Transactions 

 
During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions between funds to subsidize operations 
in certain funds, to allocate administrative costs, to construct assets, to distribute grant proceeds, etc. 
These transactions are generally reflected as operating transfers.  Inter-fund transfers are reported as 
other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after the non-operating revenues/expenses 
section in proprietary funds. 
 
Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of 
activities are reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the governmental 
activities column are eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business-type activities column 
are eliminated. 
 

Estimates and Assumptions 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompanying notes.  
Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

 
 
NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Explanation of certain differences between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-Wide 
Statement of Net Position 
 
The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between total governmental fund balances and of 
governmental activities in the government-wide statement of net position. This difference primarily results from the 
long-term economic focus of the statement of net position versus the current financial resources focus of the 
governmental fund balance sheets. 
 

Capital Asset Differences 
 

When capital assets (land, buildings, improvements and equipment) are purchased or constructed for use in 
governmental fund activities, the costs of those assets are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.  
However, those costs are reported as capital assets in the statement of net position. The details of these 
differences are presented below: 

 
Land $  22,775,043 
Buildings and Structures 2,014,122 
Improvements and Infrastructure 40,097,253 
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles 1,446,859 
  Less Accumulated Depreciation  (24,181,167) 
Net Capital Asset Difference $  42,152,111 

 
Long-Term Liability Differences 

 
Long-Term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the 
governmental fund balance sheet. All liabilities (both current and long-term) are reported in the statement of 
net position. The details of these differences are presented below: 

 
Lease Payable $    (50,085) 
Net Pension Liability    (22,136) 
Compensated Absences   (106,327) 
Total Long-Term Liability Difference $  (178,548) 
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NOTE 2 - (CONTINUED) 
 
Explanation of certain differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 
 
The governmental fund financial statements include reconciliation between changes in fund balances in the 
governmental funds and changes in net position in the government-wide statement of activities. This difference 
primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of activities versus the current financial resource 
focus of the governmental fund financial statements. 
 

Capital Outlay and Depreciation Differences 
 

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances.  They are reported as capital assets, with the costs allocated over the useful lives of the assets, as 
depreciation, in the statement of activities. The details of these differences are reported below: 
 

Capital Outlay $     930,898 
Developer Contributions 1,425,774 
Depreciation Expense  (1,285,982) 
Net Difference $  1,070,689 
 

Long-Term Debt Issuance and Repayment Differences 
 

The change in long-term compensated absences is not reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balance. This change is reported in the statement of activities. The detail of this difference 
is reported   below: 

 
Change in Pension Benefits Payable $  60,819 
Change in Compensated Absences    (9,208) 
Net Difference $  51,611 

 
NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Budgetary Information 
 
Prior to the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the Mayor and the City Manager submit to the 
City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget 
includes proposed expenditures and proposed sources of revenues. 
 
Between May 1 and June 22, the City Council reviews and adjusts the proposed budget. On or before June 22, a public 
hearing is held and the budget is legally adopted through passage of a resolution, unless a property tax increase is 
proposed. If a property tax increase is proposed, a hearing must be held on or before August 17, which does not conflict 
with other taxing entities that have proposed a property tax increase. At this time the final balanced budget is adopted. 
 
Under Utah State law, the City’s budget establishes maximum legal authorization for expenditures during the fiscal 
year. Expenditures are not to exceed the budgeted amounts, including revisions, except as allowed by the code for 
certain events. 
 
The Mayor, in conjunction with the appropriate department head, has the authority to transfer budget appropriations 
within and between any divisions of any budgetary fund. The City Council has the authority to transfer budget 
appropriations between individual budgetary funds by resolution. A public hearing must be held to increase the total 
appropriations of any one governmental fund type; however, after the original public hearing, operating and capital 
budgets of proprietary fund types may be increased by resolution without an additional hearing. 
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NOTE 3 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Annual budgets for the general fund, all debt service funds and capital projects funds were legally adopted by the City 
and prepared on the modified-accrual method of accounting. Annual budgets for the proprietary funds were legally 
adopted by the City and prepared on the accrual method of accounting. 
 
Although Utah State law requires the initial preparation of budgets for all City funds (both governmental and 
proprietary), it only requires the reporting of comparisons of actual results to budgets for the general fund and any 
major special revenue funds. 
 
Tax Revenues 
 
Property taxes are collected by the County Treasurer and remitted to the City in two to three installments in November, 
December, and a final settlement in the first quarter of the calendar year. Taxes are levied and are due and payable 
on November 1st and are delinquent after November 30th of each year, at which time they become liens if not paid. An 
accrual of uncollected current and prior year’s property taxes beyond that which was received within 60 days after the 
fiscal year end has not been made, as the amounts are not deemed to be material. 
 
Sales taxes are collected by the Utah State Tax Commission and remitted to the City monthly. An accrual has been 
made for all taxes received by the State for the period ended June 30th and thus due and payable to the City. 
  
Franchise taxes are charged to various utility companies doing business with the City including telephone, cable 
television, gas utility, and electric utility companies. The fees are remitted on a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis. An 
accrual has been made for all fees due and payable to the City at June 30th. 
 
 
NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Deposits 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Deposits. Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be 
returned to it. The City does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2021, none of the 
City’s bank balances of $151,069 was uninsured and uncollateralized. 
 
Investments 
 
The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State Treasurer about investment 
policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in strengthening the banking and credit structure of the State, and 
review the rules adopted under the authority of the State of Utah Money Management Act that relate to the deposit and 
investment of public funds. 
 
The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7) in handling its 
depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the depositing of City funds in a qualified depository. The Act 
defines a qualified depository as any financial institution whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal 
Government and which has been certified by the State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the 
requirements of the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council. 
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NOTE 4 – (CONTINUED) 
 
The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments for the City’s funds 
and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions may be conducted only through 
qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of the investment securities. 
 
Statutes authorize the City to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified depositories and permitted 
negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first 
tier” by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the United States 
Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds; obligations, other than mortgage derivative products, issued by U.S. 
government sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies) such as the Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home 
Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), and Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, 
and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate corporate obligations and variable 
rate securities rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating 
organizations; shares or certificates in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Money Management Act; and the 
Utah State Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund. 
 
The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF). The PTIF is available for 
investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer and is not registered with the SEC as an investment 
company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated by the Money Management Act (Utah Code, Title 51, Chapter 7). The 
Act established the Money Management Council which oversees the activities of the State Treasurer and the PTIF and 
details the types of authorized investments. Deposits in the PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State 
of Utah, and participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments. 
 
The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and losses of the PTIF, 
net of administrative fees, are allocated based upon the participant’s average daily balance. The fair value of the PTIF 
investment pool is approximately equal to the value of the pool shares. 
 
Fair Value of Investments 
 
The City measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows: 
 

• Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets; 
• Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and,  
• Level 3: Unobservable inputs. 

 
At June 30, 2021, the City had the following recurring fair value measurements: 
 

  Fair Value Measurements Using 
 June 30, 2021   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3 
Debt Securities 
  Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund $17,661,972 $      - $17,661,972 $        - 
 

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 2 are valued using the following approach: The Utah Public Treasurers’ 
Investment Fund uses the application of the June 30, 2021 fair value factor, as calculated by the Utah State Treasurer, 
to the City’s average daily balance in the Fund. 
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NOTE 4 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 

  
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The City’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest rates is to 
comply with the State’s Money Management Act.  Section 51-7-11 of the Money Management Act requires that the 
remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period of availability of the funds to be invested. The Act 
further limits the remaining term to maturity on all investments in commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, fixed rate 
negotiable deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligations to 270 days – 15 months or less. The Act further limits the 
remaining term to maturity on all investments in obligations of the United States Treasury; obligations issued by U.S. 
government sponsored enterprises; and bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of 
the State to 5 years. In addition, variable rate negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not have a remaining 
term to final maturity exceeding 3 years. 
 
At June 30, 2021, the City had the following maturities: 

  Investment Maturities (In Years)    
 Fair       Less       More 
Investment Type Value         than 1 1-5    than 5 
Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund $17,661,972 $17,661,972 $    - $        - 

 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The City’s policy 
for deducing its exposure to credit risk is to comply with the State’s Money Management Act, as previously discussed.  
 
At June 30, 2021, the City’s investments had the following quality ratings: 

 
 Fair                           Quality Ratings                      
Investment Type  Value      AAA AA A Unrated 
Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund $17,661,972 $   - $   - $   - $17,661,972 

 
The deposits and investments described above are included on the statement of net position as per the following 
reconciliation: 
 

Deposits $     488,461 
Investments 17,319,674 
Bond Proceeds 342,298 
Cash on Hand          1,000 
 
Total $18,151,433 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $13,320,605 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents   4,830,828 
 
Total $18,151,433 
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NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES 
 
Property taxes are levied on January 1 of 2021, are due in November of 2021, and are budgeted for the 2021 fiscal 
year. Even though they are not intended to fund the 2021 fiscal year, they must be recognized as an asset because 
the City has an enforceable claim to the revenue. The property taxes that have been remitted to the City within 60 days 
of the end of the current fiscal period have been recognized as revenue. The uncollected, measurable amounts have 
been accrued as deferred revenue. 
 
Franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. 
 
The following is a summary of receivables and the associated allowances for uncollectible accounts at June 30, 2021: 
 
  Governmental Business-type  

    Activities         Activities           Total       
Accounts Receivable $      61,358 $  273,889 $   335,247 
Property Taxes Receivable 1,839,480 - 1,839,480  

 Class C Road Receivable 115,103 - 115,103  
 Sales Tax Receivable 347,172 - 347,172 
 Franchise Tax Receivable 29,635 - 29,635 
 Mass Transit Tax Receivable 32,714                                 -                       32,714 
 Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts                -      (4,500)       (4,500) 

 
Total  $2,425,462 $  269,389    $2,694,851 
 

 
NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The following schedule presents the capital activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

 
Beginning      Ending 

Governmental Activities   Balance   Increases Decreases    Balance    
Capital Assets not being Depreciated 
   Land  $ 22,775,043 $               - $          - $ 22,775,043 
Capital Assets being Depreciated 
   Buildings and Structures 1,913,266 100,856 - 2,014,122 
   Improvements and Infrastructure 38,116,061 1,981,192 - 40,097,253 
   Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles    1,172,235     274,624           -    1,446,859 
 
Total  63,976,606 2,356,672 - 66,333,278 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (22,895,184) (1,285,983)           - (24,181,167) 
 
Governmental Activities 
 Capital Assets, Net $ 41,081,422 $1,070,690 $          - $ 42,152,111 
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NOTE 6 – (CONTINUED) 
 
The following schedule presents the capital activity of the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

 
Beginning      Ending 

Business-type Activities   Balance Increases Decreases    Balance    
Capital Assets not being Depreciated 
   Land  $     456,127 $               - $          - $     456,127 
   Water Shares 73,400 - - 73,400 
Capital Assets being Depreciated 
   Work in Progress - 793,707 - 793,707 
   Buildings and Structures 215,074 - - 215,074 
   Improvements and Infrastructure 41,988,950 3,724,846 - 45,713,796 
   Machinery, Equipment, and Vehicles    1,768,716       73,767           -     1,842,484 
 
Total  44,502,267 4,592,320 - 49,094,587 
Less Accumulated Depreciation (14,611,216)     (970,576)           - (15,581,792) 
 
Business-type Activities 
 Capital Assets, Net $ 29,891,051 $3,621,745 $          - $ 33,512,795 
 
 
Depreciation was charged to the functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities  
General Government $     88,216 
 Streets  963,355 
Parks and Recreation 228,042 
Cemetery         6,370 

 
Total Depreciation for Governmental Activities $1,285,983 

 
Business-type Activities 
Water  $   360,619 
Sewer  178,419 
Pressurized Irrigation 293,009 
Storm Drain    138,529 

 
Total Depreciation Expense-Business-type Activities $   970,577 
 
 

NOTE 7 –DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 

The City reports a deferred amount on refunding of $133,109 in the pressure irrigation fund. The deferred amount on 
refunding resulted from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is 
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of refunded or refunding debt. The City also reports deferred outflows 
of resources related to pensions of $78,530, in the governmental activities and $69,388 in the business-type activities 
and funds. 
 
 
 



38 
 

NOTE 7 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Property taxes of $1,817,890 to be collected in November were unavailable in the current fiscal year. Accordingly, 
these property taxes are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts 
become available. These amounts are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the government-wide 
statement of net position. Also, the City reported deferred inflows of resources related to pensions of $165,464 in the 
governmental activities and $146,202 in the business-type activities and funds. 
 
These amounts are reported in the government-wide statement of net position as follows: 
 
  Governmental Business-type 
     Activities       Activities     
 Deferred Outflows of Resources $      78,530 $ 202,497 
 Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 1,983,354 $ 146,202 
 
 
NOTE 8 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
 Governmental Business-type 
    Activities       Activities      
 
Accounts Payable  $  393,469 $ 267,655  
Customer Deposits Payable - 37,500  
Accrued Interest Payable - 5,333  
Developer Completion Bonds Payable 538,906 8,155  
Infrastructure Protection Bonds Payable 1,526,056 -  
Open Space Bond Payable                -              -  
 
Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $2,458,431 $ 318,643  
 
The City collects deposits from those wishing to develop subdivisions within the City. The City also collects 
deposits from developers to ensure that the City’s infrastructure is protected during construction.  These 
amounts are deposited into the City’s bank account. The original deposit is returned to the developer after the 
related project is completed. 
 
 
NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt of the City for the year ended June 30, 2021: 

 
Beginning      Ending Due Within 
 Balance  Additions Reductions  Balance  One Year  

Governmental Activities  
Sweeper Lease $      98,143 $          - $   (48,058) $      50,085 $   50,085 
Net Pension Liability 159,553 - (137,417) 22,136 - 
Compensated Absences       97,120    9,208               -     106,328     92,027 
 

 $    354,816 $   9,208 $ (185,475) $    178,549 $  142,112 
Business-type Activities  
Revenue Bonds 
   2010 Water Bond $ 3,550,000 $  - $ (342,000)  $ 3,208,000 $  338,000 
Net Pension Liability 140,980 - (121,421) 19,559 - 
Compensated Absences       44,541    5,404               -       49,945     40,589 
 

 $ 3,735,521 $   5,404 $ (463,421) $ 3,277,504 $  378,589 
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NOTE 9 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Long-term debt and obligations payable at June 30, 2021 were as follows: 

 
Interest Maturity  Current Long-term 

Governmental Activities    Rate      Dates   Portion     Balance   
2017 Street Sweeper Lease 3.05% 2022  $   50,085 $            - 

Net Pension Liability            - 22,136 
Compensated Absences        92,027   14,301 
 
Total Governmental Activities Long-term Debt     $ 142,112 $  36,437 
 
 

Interest Maturity  Current Long-term 
Business-type Activities    Rate      Dates   Portion     Balance   
Bonds Payable 
 Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, 
  Dated July 2010, (original amount-- 2.00% to 
  $5,875,000) 4.00%   2026 $ 338,000 $ 2,870,000 
 
Net Pension Liability   - 19,559 
 
Compensated Absences      40,589         9,356 
 
Total Business-type Activities Long-term Debt   $ 378,589 $ 2,898,915 
 
In prior years, the City defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable 
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and 
the liability for the defeased bonds are not included on the City’s financial statements. On June 30, 2021, 
$4,640,000 of bonds outstanding are considered deceased. 
 
Principal and interest requirements to retire the City’s long-term obligations are as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Government Wide 
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2021 $50,085 $       - $  338,000 $ 40,419  $  388,085 $ 40,419 
2022 - - 342,000 35,897 342,000 35,897 
2023 - - 347,000 31,315 347,000 31,315 
2024 - - 352,000 26,666 352,000 26,666 
2025-2026           -         - 1,829,000   61,466 1,829,000   61,466 

 $50,085 $        - $3,208,000 $195,763 $3,258,085 $195,763 
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NOTE 10 - FUND EQUITY 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets – The net investment in capital assets reported on the government-wide 
statement of net position as of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 
      Business- 
     Governmental type 

 Activities Activities 
Cost of capital assets $ 66,333,278 $ 49,094,587 
Less accumulated depreciation (24,181,167) (15,581,792) 
Book value 42,152,111 33,512,795 
Less capital-related debt        (50,085)   (3,208,000) 
Net investment in capital assets $ 42,102,026 $ 30,304,795 

   
Restricted Fund Equity– The Class “C” Roads allotment from the state excise tax is restricted for construction 
and maintenance of City streets and roads. The City’s bond covenants require certain restrictions of retained 
earnings in the pressure irrigation fund. Utah State statute requires unexpended impact fees held at year-end 
to be restricted for future expansion in the charging department or fund. A perpetual trust fund is designed to 
provide future operating costs for the cemetery. Funds are collected at the time a lot is sold and a percentage 
of the fee is transferred to the trust fund. In addition, funds have been assigned for various capital projects. 
 
 
NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS  
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan description: Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement Systems (URS). 
The Utah Retirement Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds: 
 
 Defined Benefit Plans 

• Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System) is a multiple employer, cost 
sharing, public employee retirement system.  

• Tier 2 Public Employees Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System) is a multiple 
employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system. 

 
The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011.  All eligible employees beginning on or after July 
1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, are members of the Tier 2 
Retirement System. 
 
The Utah Retirement Systems (Systems) are established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49 of the 
Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The Systems’ defined benefit plans are amended statutorily by the State 
Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration of the Systems under the 
direction of the URS Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined 
as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of Utah. Title 49 of the Utah 
Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. URS issues a publicly available financial report 
that can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement Systems, 560 E. 200 S., Salt Lake City, Utah 84102 or visiting the 
website: www.urs.org. 
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NOTE 11 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Benefits Provided: URS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.   Retirement benefits are as follows: 
 
Summary of Benefits by System 
   Years of service  
   required and/or Benefit percent   
System  Final Average Salary age eligible for benefit per year of service COLA**  
Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 years any age 2.0% per year all years Up to 4% 
   25 years any age* 
   20 years age 60* 
   10 years age 62*   
   4 years age 65    
Tier 2 Public  Highest 5 years 35 years any age 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5% 
Employees System  20 years any age 60* 
   10 years age 62* 
   4 years age 65    
 
*Actuarial reductions are applied. 
**All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for Judges, which is a compounding benefit.  
The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused CPI increases not met may be 
carried forward to subsequent years. 
 
Contribution Rate Summary 
As a condition of participation in the Systems, employers and/or employees are required to contribute certain 
percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the URS Board. Contributions are actuarially 
determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions (where applicable) is expected to finance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. Contribution rates as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:     
     Employer 
    Employee Contribution Employer Rate 
        Paid          Rates    for 401(k) Plan 
 Contributory System 
  111 Local Governmental Division Tier 2    N/A 15.80    0.89 
 Noncontributory System 
  15 Local Governmental Division Tier 1    N/A 18.47  N/A 
 Tier 2 DC Only  
  211 Local Government    N/A 6.69 10.00 
 
Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the Tier 1 
plans. 
 
For fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the employer and employee contribution to the Systems were as follows: 
 
   Employer     Employee   
System  Contributions  Contributions   
 Noncontributory System   $113,069  N/A 
 Tier 2 Public Employees System  50,496  - 
 Tier 2 DC Only System   3,676  N/A  
  Total Contributions   $167,241  $       -  
 
Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System. Contributions in the Tier 2 
Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 Systems. 
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NOTE 11 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Combined Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2021, we reported a net pension asset of $0 and a net pension liability of $41,696. 
 
  Measurement Date: December 31, 2020 
  Net Pension Net Pension Proportionate Proportionate Share    Change 
   Asset Liability       Share    December 31, 2019 (Decrease) 
 Noncontributory System $            $39,108 0.0762425% 0.0785563% (0.0023138)% 
 Tier 2 Public Employees System $          - $  2,588 0.0179933% 0.0198515% (0.0018582)% 
  $          - $41,696  
 
The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2020, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2020 and rolled-
forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of the net pension asset and liability is equal to 
the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the Systems during the plan year over the total of all employer 
contributions to the System during the plan year. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, we recognized pension expense of $52,852.  
 
At June 30, 2021, we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources relating to pensions 
from the following sources: 
     Deferred Deferred 
  Outflows of  Inflows of 
   Resources  Resources 
 Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 54,848 $    1,185 
 Change in assumptions    3,273 5,210 
 Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
  on pension plan investments   - 293,134 
 Changes in proportion and differences between 
  contributions and proportionate share of contributions  7,896 12,138 
 Contributions subsequent to the measurement date    81,901             -  
 Total    $147,919 $311,667 
  
$81,901 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension’s results from contributions made by us 
prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2020. These contributions will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year.  
 
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will 
be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
    
   Deferred Outflows 
Year Ended December 31,  (inflows) of Resources    
  2021 $  (69,065) 
  2022 $  (31,647) 
  2023 $(101,911)  
  2024 $  (47,882) 
  2025 $        858 
  Thereafter $     3,997 
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NOTE 11 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
 Inflation  2.50 Percent  
 Salary increases  3.25–9.75 percent, average, including inflation 
 Investment rate of return 6.95 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 
 
Mortality rates were adopted from actuarial experience study dated January 1, 2020. The retired mortality tables are 
developed using URS retiree experience and are based upon gender, occupation, and age, as appropriate, with 
projected improvement using 80% of the ultimate rates from the MP-2019 improvement assumption using a base year 
of 2020. The mortality assumption for active members is the PUB-2010 Employees Mortality Table for public 
employees, teachers, and public safety members, respectively. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the five-year period ending December 31, 2019. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class and is applied consistently to each defined benefit 
pension plan. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 
     Expected Return Arithmetic Basis         
   Real Return Long-Term Expected  
  Target Asset Arithmetic Portfolio Real  
Asset Class          Allocation        Basis Rate of return 
Equity securities 37% 6.30% 2.33% 
Debt securities 20% 0.00% 0.00% 
Real assets 15% 6.19% 0.93% 
Private equity 12% 9.50% 1.14% 
Absolute return 16% 2.75% 0.44% 
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00% 
Totals 100%  4.84% 
  Inflation  2.50% 
  Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.34% 
 
The 6.95% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50%, a real return of 4.45% that is 
net of investment expense. 
 
Discount rate: the discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.95 percent.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution 
rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually required rates that are 
actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate does not use the Municipal 
Bond Index Rate. The discount rate was unchanged at 6.95 percent. 
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NOTE 11 – (CONTINUED) 
 
Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in discount rate: The following 
presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.95 percent, as well 
as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (5.95 percent) or 1-percentage –point higher (7.95 percent) than the current rate: 
 
  1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase 
System   (5.95%) (6.95%) (7.95%)   
 Noncontributory System $678,017 $ 39,108 $(493,519) 
 Tier 2 Public Employees System $  43,547 $   2,588 $  (28,745)   
  Total  $721,564 $ 41,696 $(522,264)   
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pensions plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued URS financial report. 
 
 
NOTE 12– DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SAVINGSPLANS 
 
Defined Contribution Saving Plans 
The Defined Contribution Saving Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and are generally 
supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, but may also be used as a primary 
retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged retirement savings programs authorized under sections 
401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal Revenue Code. Detailed information regarding plan provisions is available in the 
separately issued URS financial report. 
 
Alpine City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with Utah Retirement Systems: 
 *401(k) Plan 
 *457(b) Plan 
 *Roth IRA Plan 
 
Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for fiscal year ended 
June 30, were as follows: 
 
401(k) Plan 2021 2020 2019  
 Employer Contributions $  8,339 $  8,017 $  7,876  
 Employee Contributions $10,349 $14,398 $12,457 
 
457 Plan 
 Employer Contributions $         0 $         0 $         0 
 Employee Contributions  $  3,230 $  2,930 $  2,600 
 
Roth IRA Plan 
 Employer Contributions  N/A N/A N/A 
 Employee Contributions  $11,803 $13,633 $18,382 
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NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

    
Alpine City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City joined together with other governments in the 
State of Utah to form the Utah Local Governments Trust (ULGT), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a 
common risk management and insurance program for Utah State governments. The City pays an annual premium to 
ULGT for its general insurance coverage. 
 
The City also carries comprehensive general liability insurance coverage through a commercial insurance company.  
Settled claims from this risk type have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
 
NOTE 14–SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or 
disclosure through September 25, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 



NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented in this section of the report is for the General Fund.

Budgeting and Budgetary Control

The budget for the General Fund is legally required and is prepared and adopted on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Original budgets represent the revenue estimates and spending authority authorized by the City Council prior to the
beginning of the year. Final budgets represent the original budget amounts plus any amendments made to the
budget during the year by the City Council through formal resolution. Final budgets do not include unexpended
balances from the prior year because such balances automatically lapse to unreserved fund balance at the end of
each year.

Current Year Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

No General Fund departmental budgets were exceeded during the fiscal year. Also, the overall General Fund budget
was not exceeded for the fiscal year.

Changes in Assumptions Related To Pensions

There were a number of demographic assumptions (e.g. rates of termination, disability, retirement, as well as an
updated mortality and salary increase assumption) updated for use in the January 1, 2020 actuarial valuation. These
assumption updates were adopted by the Utah State Retirement Board as a result of an Actuarial Experience Study
performed for the Utah Retirement Systems. In aggregate, those assumption changes resulted in a $201 million
increase in the Total Pension Liability, which is about 0.50% of the Total Pension Liability as of December 31, 2019
for all systems combined. The Actuarial Experience Study report as of December 31, 2019 provides detailed 
information regarding those assumption changes, which may be accessed online at newsroom.urs.org under the
"Reports and Stats" tab.

ALPINE CITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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ALPINE CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND

REVENUES  Original  Final 
Actual 

Amounts
 Variance with 
Final Budget 

Taxes 3,854,000$        4,223,500$        4,611,192$        387,692$              
Licenses and Permits 553,000             553,000             825,680             272,680                
Intergovernmental 537,000             1,275,985          1,433,006          157,021                
Charge for Services 936,250             936,250             830,994             (105,256)               
Fines and Forfeitures 72,500               72,500               41,045               (31,455)                 
Interest 119,000             119,000             19,765               (99,235)                 
Miscellaneous 45,000               210,000             -                         (210,000)               

TOTAL REVENUES 6,116,750          7,390,235          7,761,682          371,447                

EXPENDITURES
General Government 809,130             2,173,775          1,546,065          627,710                
Public Safety 2,383,630          3,140,815          2,410,968          729,847                
Streets 1,317,700          1,317,700          1,302,633          15,067                  
Parks and Recreation 473,120             473,120             336,206             136,914                
Cemetery 158,570             161,070             161,031             39                         
Garbage 539,600             579,600             575,846             3,754                    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,681,750          7,846,080          6,332,749          1,513,331             
EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 435,000             (455,845)            1,428,934          1,884,779             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Lawsuit Settlement -                         -                         252,887             252,887                
Transfer From Other Funds -                         -                         -                         -                            
Transfer to Other Funds (600,000)            (684,340)            (600,000)            84,340                  

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) (600,000)            (684,340)            (347,113)            337,227                

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND USES (165,000)            (1,140,185)         1,081,820          2,222,005             

FUND BALANCE ALLOCATION 165,000             1,140,185          -                         (1,140,185)            

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF RESOURCES
OVER CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS -$                       -$                       1,081,820$        1,081,820$           

Budgeted Amounts
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
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SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Last 10 Fiscal Years * Non- Tier 2 Public
contributory Employees

System System

Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 2014  0.0717485% 0.0156287%
2015  0.0810261% 0.0175649%
2016  0.0848756% 0.0168651%
2017  0.0800270% 0.0216500%
2018  0.0763697% 0.0194641%
2019  0.0785563% 0.0198515%
2020  0.7624250% 0.0179933%

Proportionate share of the net pension 2014  311,549$          (474)$                
 liability (asset) 2015  458,485$          (38)$                  

2016  545,005$          1,881$              
2017  350,622$          1,909$              
2018  562,365$          8,336$              
2019  296,068$          4,465$              
2020  39,108$            2,588$              

Covered employee payroll 2014  663,550$          76,759$            
2015  736,998$          113,498$          
2016  786,682$          138,306$          
2017  652,780$          211,607$          
2018  629,264$          227,417$          
2019  666,346$          275,964$          
2020  653,164$          287,471$          

Proportionate share of the net pension 2014  47.00% 0.60%
 liability (asset) as a percentage of its 2015  62.21% 0.03%
 covered employee payroll 2016  69.28% 1.36%

2017  53.71% 0.90%
2018  89.37% 3.67%
2019  44.43% 1.62%
2020  5.99% 0.90%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 2014  90.2% 103.5%
 of the total pension liability 2015  87.8% 100.2%

2016  87.3% 95.1%
2017  91.9% 97.4%
2018  87.0% 90.8%
2019  93.7% 96.5%
2020  99.2% 98.3%

* In accordance with paragraph 81.a of GASB 68, employers will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate
  share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) in the required supplementary information. The 10-year schedule will be built
  prospectively. The schedule above is only for the last seven years.

ALPINE CITY

DECEMBER 31, 2021
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
UTAH RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Last 10 Fiscal Years * Tier 2 Public
Non- Tier 2 Public Employees

contributory Employees DC Only
System System ** System **

Actuarial determined contribution 2014 114,397$             13,136$               1,353$                 
2015 114,070$             13,929$               3,446$                 
2016 124,334$             18,357$               3,445$                 
2017 127,890$             24,959$               3,555$                 
2018 121,718$             35,747$               2,588$                 
2019 115,756$             39,205$               3,346$                 
2020 120,781$             41,269$               3,538$                 
2021 113,069$             50,496$               3,676$                 

Contributions in relation to the 2014 114,397$             13,136$               1,353$                 
 contractually required contribution 2015 114,070$             13,929$               3,446$                 

2016 124,334$             18,357$               3,445$                 
2017 127,890$             24,959$               3,555$                 
2018 121,718$             35,747$               2,588$                 
2019 115,756$             39,205$               3,346$                 
2020 120,781$             41,269$               3,538$                 
2021 113,069$             50,496$               3,676$                 

Contribution deficiency (excess) All years -$                         -$                         -$                         

Covered employee payroll 2014 738,603$             94,004$               24,245$               
2015 689,192$             93,312$               51,275$               
2016 746,994$             123,115$             51,493$               
2017 726,568$             167,396$             53,140$               
2018 659,004$             237,435$             38,681$               
2019 641,474$             252,287$             50,008$               
2020 671,273$             264,894$             52,884$               
2021 624,920$             319,595$             54,942$               

Contributions as a percentage of 2014 15.49% 13.97% 5.58%
 covered-employee payroll ** 2015 16.55% 14.93% 6.72%

2016 16.64% 14.91% 6.69%
2017 17.60% 14.91% 6.69%
2018 18.47% 15.06% 6.69%
2019 18.05% 15.54% 6.69%
2020 17.99% 15.58% 6.69%
2021 18.09% 15.80% 6.69%

* Amounts presented were determined as of fiscal year July 1 - June 30.  The City will be required to prospectively develop
  this table in future years to show 10 years of information. The schedule above is only for the prior seven years.

** Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2
    systems were created effective July 1, 2011.

Paragraph 81.b of GASB 68 requires employers to disclose a 10-year history of contributions in Required Supplementary
  Information. Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll may be different than the board certified rate due to
  rounding and other administrative issues.

ALPINE CITY

JUNE 30, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE 

 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
Alpine City, Utah  
 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
 
I have audited Alpine City, Utah’s (City) compliance with the applicable state compliance 
requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State 
Auditor, for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
State compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2021 in the following areas: 
 

Budgetary Compliance  
Fund Balance  
Justice Courts  
Restricted Taxes and Related Revenues 
Fraud Risk Assessment 
Government Fees 

 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the state requirements referred to above. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on my audit of the state 
compliance requirements referred to above. I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and the State Compliance Audit Guide. Those standards and the State 
Compliance Audit Guide require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a state compliance requirement occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 
I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each state 
compliance requirement referred to above. However, my audit does not provide a legal 
determination of the City’s compliance with those requirements. 
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Opinion on Compliance 
 
In my opinion, Alpine City, Utah, complied, in all material respects, with the state compliance 
requirements referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the state compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing my audit of compliance, I considered the City’s internal control over compliance with 
the state compliance requirements referred to above to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with 
those state compliance requirements and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a state compliance 
requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a state compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. I did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my 
testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the State Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
  
Greg Ogden, 
Certified Public Accountant 
Springville, Utah 
September 25, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Honorable Mayor 
Members of the City Council 
Alpine City, Utah  
 
I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Alpine City, Utah (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic 
financial statements and have issued my report thereon dated September 25, 2021. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the City’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during my audit I did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be material weaknesses.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Alpine, Utah's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not 
express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
Greg Ogden 
Certified Public Accountant 
Springville, Utah 
September 25, 2021 



ALPINE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

SUBJECT: The Ridge at Alpine – Final Design of Oakview Drive 
 
FOR CONSIDERATION ON: 26 October 2021 
 
PETITIONER: Staff   
 
ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Review the latest recommendation 

for the Oakview Drive connection. 
      
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  

 
We have been working back and forth with the developer, engineer and the adjacent 
homeowner to the Oakview Drive connection over the last few weeks in an effort to 
address design concerns.  The design that has been prepared provides a 3% grade from 
the intersection and heading west (that is the maximum allowed by our code) with a 
transition to a 0.5% grade (the minimum grade that we allow for streets).  This minimum 
grade needs to be followed to carry stormwater into the storm drain system.  Following 
are some design issues that have surfaced: 
 

• This design requires a 2-3’ deep fill on the south side.  This is not really an issue 
for the city, but it does create conflicts with trees that are in the right-of-way. 

• The offsite portion of the Oakview Drive connection was approved without curb 
and gutter to match the rest of Alpine Cove.  Over a two-day period this week, 
we received approximately 1.5” of rain.  With the streets in Alpine Cove not 
having curb and gutter, with most developed lots having landscaped right to the 
edge of asphalt and with there being no storm drain system in the area, the water 
finds a path of least resistance and follows it.  We have attached photos showing 
where water has taken a path from Alpine Cove Drive into the area of the 
Oakview Drive connection.  If the Oakview Drive connection is built without 
curb and gutter, the water could take a path towards the home on the south side 
of Oakview Drive. 

• There’s not a way to make everyone happy on this one… 
 
The City Council last dealt with this issue at their September 14, 2021, meeting.  The 
following motion approved: 
 

Motion: Carla Merrill moved to reduce the road taper from 30 feet to 26 feet, 
with the following conditions: any excess of the funds that would have been spent 
on the difference be put into an escrow account for the city and if the city does go 
off center alignment for the road that the city has the right of way to the north be 
acquired by Mr. Smith by next City Council meeting on Tuesday September 28, 
2021. Greg Gordon seconded the motion. There were 5Ayes and 0 Nays, as 
recorded below. The motion passed unanimously. As recorded below. 
 

Included in this packet is the design that was submitted.  The design shows a taper from 
30 to 26 feet of asphalt with the pavement shifting north within the existing right of way.  
The typical cross section includes 12 feet from the edge of pavement to the right-of-way 
line.  To maintain the 12 feet, 3 feet of property would need to be acquired from the 



property owner to the north.  It is our understanding the north property is not willing to 
sell this property.   
 
From the staff standpoint, we recommend that City Council consider the following: 

• Allow the centerline of the pavement to shift north some distance within the 
existing right-of-way. 

• Install curb and gutter on both sides of the street from the east boundary line of 
The Ridge development to the intersection with Alpine Cove Drive.  Due to the 
fact that the runoff shown in the photos we have provided came from streets that 
are outside of The Ridge development and the fact that the development was 
approved without curb and gutter being required on the offsite portion of Oakview 
Drive, we recommend that the City fund the curb and gutter on this portion of the 
street.  The street approved without curb and gutter would require a minimum 2’ 
wide gravel should on each side of the street.  This could serve as the required 
gravel under the curb and gutter.  In this case, the city would only be paying for 
the curb and gutter.  We obtained a quote from Landmark Excvation, who is the 
contractor on the project.  The cost of the curb and gutter is $10,062.  The 
developer was required in the previous motion to give the City the saving of the 
4’ wide strip of asphalt.  We have roughly calculated that amount to be $3,323.20.  
mean the net cost of the curb and gutter would be ~$6,750.  Constructing the curb 
and gutter now versus after asphalt has been place will leave a better finished 
product.    

 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Consider approving an alternative design and includes curb and gutter, with the curb 
and gutter being funded by the City. 

 
SAMPLE MOTION TO APPROVE: 
I move that the proposed Oakview Drive plan be approved with curb and gutter being 
funded by the City. 
 
 



PROJECT NAME & NUMBER: The Ridge at Alpine Phase 5

 

OWNER: SZ Investments

SUBMITTED TO:  Jed Muhlestein

DATE: 10/20/2021

CHANGES TO BE MADE TO ORIGINAL CONTRACT: Add curbing to Cove side of Oak View Dr

Item Quantity Units Price Total

1 556 LF $14.50 $8,062.00

2 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00

TOTAL $10,062.00

Original contract:

Previous change orders: $0.00

Total this change order: $10,062.00

Adjusted contract: $10,062.00

Requested and Approved by Owner /Engineer:

Name: Title: Signature:

Accepted and Approved by Landmark Excavating, Inc.

Name: Title: Signature:

Added contract time:  

Description

Landmark Excavating, Inc.
195 E 600 S 

84003

801-554-3255

American Fork UT

Mobilization

24" Curb and Gutter APWA Type A



Oak View Drive
4' Narrowed Roadway Costs

Alpine City Council approved a 26-foot roadway section on Oak View Drive to reduce the impact

of construction on the property owned by Todd Smith (13423 Alpine Cove Dr.).  In so doing, 

the City Council did not release the responsibility of the Developer to pay for a full width 

street.  The developer is building a 26-foot wide asphalt road.  The costs figured below are

costs that would have been required to build the road to 30-foot (standard width).  The

Developer is required to pay this cost to the City to be used for street improvoment projects.  

Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total

992 SF 0.50$       496.00$       

992 SF 0.20$       198.40$       

992 SF 1.00$       992.00$       

992 SF 1.65$       1,636.80$   

Grand Total 3,323.20$   

Jed Muhlstein, P.E.

Alpine City Engineer

Clear and Grub

Rough Grade Native Sub-Grade

9" Road Base 

3" Hot Mix Asphalt 
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ALPINE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

SUBJECT: Review 2021 Update to the General Plan 
 

FOR CONSIDERATION ON: 26 October 2021 
 

PETITIONER: Staff   
 

ACTION REQUESTED BY PETITIONER: Review latest draft of the General 

Plan and discuss final amendments 

and edits. 

      

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
 

It is proposed that the Mayor and City Council review the latest draft of the General Plan 

and provide feedback regarding final edits to the document. Following the review, a final 

draft will be prepared by staff and a public hearing will be held at the next City Council 

meeting, with the intent to adopt the 2021 update to the General Plan.  

 

Upcoming Schedule: 

• October 26, 2021 – Review and Final edits 

• November 9, 2021 – Public Hearing & Adopt Updated General Plan 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Review latest draft of the General Plan and discuss final amendments and edits. 

 

 

 



ALPINE CITY 

GENERAL PLAN 

2021-2041 

Adopted ______, 2021
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INTRODUCTION 

In accordance with Utah State Code, Alpine City has legally prepared and adopted 
the following General Plan in 2021. Although the information contained in this 
plan is general, it represents an important perspective that can help direct future 
planning decisions. 

The mission of this General Plan is to provide a strong, positive civic image and 
quality of life in Alpine City by providing guidelines and standards that ensure the 
orderly and balanced distribution of growth; sound fiscal and economic 
investment; and preservation of the open and rural environment in a clean, 
attractive physical setting. 
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LAND USE  

GOAL #1 

Maintain and promote a historic small-town, rural atmosphere that embraces 

agricultural uses, open spaces and the mountainous surroundings of the City. 

 

 

 

Policies 

1.1 Promote and preserve both natural and developed open spaces around the 

City with a preference towards public open spaces. The City prefers that this 

is done through Planned Residential Developments (PRD) or by the public 

purchase of land.   

1.2 Encourage, develop and/or maintain venues that enhance a sense of 

community and provide residents an opportunity to congregate. 

1.3 Preserve animal rights.  

1.4 Encourage and maintain a safe, convenient and inviting atmosphere for 

pedestrians within commercial areas by applying the Gateway Historic 

District Design Guidelines. 

1.5 Preserve and beautify the three gateways into the City and do so in a way so 

that it is clear that you are entering Alpine. 

1.6 Encourage beautifying streetscapes while protecting City sidewalks and 

infrastructure through the implementation of Street Tree Guidelines. 

 

DRAFT
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1.7 Promote the creation of, and preserve existing, access to trails, mountains, 

and open space. 

1.8 Promote developments, designs, and plans which protect mountain and 

valley views.

DRAFT
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GOAL #2 

Provide clearly defined land zones to support the vision for a low density, rural 

atmosphere that meet the needs of residents.  

Policies 

2.1 Land zoned as B-C (Business Commercial) shall consist of professional office, 

retail and other commercial uses serving the community and situated within 

an environment which is safe and aesthetically pleasing.   

2.2 Land zoned as TR-10,000 (Town Residential – 10,000 square foot minimum 

lot size) shall include the area generally located within the originally settled 

town center of Alpine that is considered appropriate for higher density 

residential development.  

2.3 Land zoned as CR-20,000 (Country Residential – 20,000 square foot minimum 

lot size) shall include, but is not exclusive to, traditional agricultural land and 

land located at a lower elevation that is considered appropriate for medium 

density residential development.  These areas should provide for the 

perpetuation of the rural and open space image of the City. 

2.4 Land zoned as CR-40,000 (Country Residential – 40,000 square foot minimum 

lot size) shall include, but is not exclusive to, land generally located around 

the periphery of the City center considered appropriate for low density 

residential development.  These areas should provide for the perpetuation of 

the rural and open space image of the City. 

DRAFT
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2.5 Land zoned as CE-5 (Critical Environment – 5-acre minimum lot size) shall 

consist of areas primarily located in mountainous areas of the City considered 

appropriate for very low-density residential development.  These areas, as a 

result of the presence of steep slope, adverse soil characteristics, flood hazard, 

mudflow, earthquake potential, wildfire hazard or similar critical and 

sensitive natural conditions, are considered environmentally fragile.  As a 

result of the large amount of area that is considered environmentally fragile, 

development will be clustered and interspersed with large and undisturbed 

open space areas. 

2.6 Follow the Alpine City Annexation Policy Plan. 

2.7 Zoning shall be arranged from higher density zones in the center of the City 

to gradually lower density zones as you move towards the outer City limits.

DRAFT
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GOAL #3 

Preserve and protect specific community characteristics such as hillsides, scenic 

views, critical lands and a historic small-town, rural atmosphere by using overlay 

zones which build on an underlying zone by setting additional and strict standards, 

and applying the standards of both zones. 

 

 

 

Policies 

3.1 The Gateway Historic District Overlay Zone should maintain a high character 

of community development by regulating the exterior architecture 

characteristics of structures that are developed in the center of Alpine City 

(See Gateway Historic District Design Guidelines).  

3.2 The Sensitive Lands Overlay Zones are to provide for safe, orderly and 

beneficial development of areas characterized by sensitive and hazardous 

conditions as shown on the official Sensitive and Hazard Area Maps 

(floodplain, Wildland Urban Interface, geologic hazards and hillside) and to 

limit alteration to topography and reduce encroachment upon, or alteration 

of, such areas. 

3.2.1 The Geologic Hazards Overlay Zone is to minimize the adverse 

effects of geologic hazards including surface fault ruptures, 

landslides, debris flows, rock fall and soil liquefaction. 

3.2.2 The Wildland Urban Interface Overlay Zone is to establish 

standards for development and fire prevention in areas 

bordering on wildlands.
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3.2.3 The Flood Damage Prevention Overlay Zone is to minimize 

public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific 

areas. 

3.2.4 The Hillside Protection Overlay Zone is to establish standards 

for developments of certain hillsides located in the City to 

minimize soil and slope instability, to minimize erosion and to 

preserve the character of the hillsides. 

3.3 The Senior Housing Overlay Zone is to provide for increased land use 

flexibility and specialized types of senior housing that recognizes and 

accommodates varied housing needs and desires of the community’s senior 

housing population while promoting independence and a high quality of life. 

3.4 The Assisted Living and Nursing Care Overlay Zone is to provide for increased 

land use flexibility to assure that health and human services are appropriately 

located in the community to meet the needs of aging residents.  
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Figure 1 – Land Use Map 
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TRANSPORTATION & TRAFFIC 

CIRCULATION  

GOAL #1 

Create and maintain a multi-modal transportation system that is pedestrian 

friendly, safe and efficient.   

 

 

 

Policies 

1.1 Promote safe and efficient traffic circulation by following the Street Master 

Plan. Pedestrian safety shall also be a key focus of the traffic circulation plan. 

1.2 Connect neighborhoods and open spaces of the City with appropriate trails, 

sidewalks and bike lanes that support alternate forms of local transportation 

and recreation. 

1.3 Work with adjacent communities and other agencies to acquire financial aid 

for transportation improvements. 

1.4 Emphasize the maintenance of roads to ensure a high-quality road system. 

1.5 Promote the use of roundabouts or other traffic flow options to prevent the 

need for stop lights therefore maintaining the historic small-town rural 

atmosphere. 

1.6 Limit intermunicipal and unincorporated county street connections to the 

approved connections identified on the Alpine City Transportation Master 

Plan. Ensure that street connections to other municipalities, unincorporated 
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county, or other areas outside the City boundaries are compatible with the 

goals and policies of the General Plan. Any additional street connection to 

such areas would require City Council approval and appropriate amendments 

to the General Plan, Street Master Plan, and applicable City ordinances. 

1.7 Promote open streets accessible to all citizens by eliminating all private 

streets and gated communities. 

1.8 Create and promote an Active Transportation Plan for Alpine City. 
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Figure 2   - Street Master Plan
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MODERATE INCOME HOUSING  

 

 

Purpose 

The Moderate Income Housing Element is intended to accomplish the following: 

• Comply with Utah State Code; 

• Summarize Alpine City’s population, income levels, and housing values; 

• Discuss constraints and opportunities for the provision of moderate income housing; and 

• Identify goals and policies to address Alpine City housing needs. 

 

Definition 

Moderate income housing is defined by the state as “housing occupied or reserved for 

occupancy by households with a gross household income equal to or less than eighty percent 

(80%) of the median income for households of the same size in the county in which the city is 

located”(Utah Code 10-9a Part 1). 

 

 For the purposes of this element, this definition is further refined to include the 

following income categories: 

A. Moderate Income: 51% – 80% of the county median income 

B. Low Income: 31% - 50% of the county median income 

C. Very Low: 30% or less of the county median income 

 

State law and local planning 

Utah Municipal Code Chapter 10-9a-403-B-iii requires each city to: 1) provide an estimate of the 

need for the development of additional moderate income housing within the city, and 2) to 

provide a plan to provide a realistic opportunity to meet estimated needs for additional moderate 

income housing if long-term projections for land use and development occur. 

State law requires each city to: 

DRAFT
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• Consider the Legislature's determination that cities shall facilitate a reasonable 

opportunity for a variety of housing, including moderate income housing; 

• Meet the needs of people desiring to live there; and 

• Allow persons with moderate incomes to benefit from and fully participate in all aspects 

of neighborhood and community life. 

 

Current and future projections 

POPULATION ESTIMATE 

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the population estimate for Alpine City in 2017 was 

10,197 with a projected annual rate of growth of 117. Projected population for 2024 is 11,004. 

 

 

 

TOTAL HOUSEHOLD UNITS 

Over the next 5 years the U.S. Census Bureau projects the ratio of renter-occupied structures to 

owner occupied structures to increase at approximately 40 units per year: 

 

  

  
 

 

2009 

American

Community 

Survey

2017 

American

Community 

Survey

Annual

Growth Rate

(Slope)

2024

Projection

Difference 

between 2017 

and 2024

Total Population:

(ACS Table B01003) 9,651 10,197 117 11,004 807

Total Population in occupied 

housing units

(ACS Table B25008) 9,651 10,197 117 11,004 807

Total Population in owner-

occupied housing

(ACS Table B25008) 8,695 8,780 63 9,014 234

Total Population in renter-

occupied housing

(ACS Table B25008) 956 1,417 54 1,990 573

Source 1:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B01003: Total population.  American Community Survey. 

Source 2:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B25008: Total population in occupied housing units by tenure.  American Community Survey. 

2009 

American

Community 

Survey

2017 

American

Community 

Survey

Annual

Growth Rate

(Slope)

2024

Projection

Difference 

between 2017 

and 2024

TOTAL HOUSING UNITS

(ACS Table B25001) 2,499 2,770 40 3,098 328

Source 1:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B25001: Total housing units.  American Community Survey. 

Source 2:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B25032: Tenure by units in structure.  American Community Survey. 
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EXISTING MODERATE INCOME HOUSING 

Alpine City’s existing moderate income housing is a mix of twin homes, apartments, accessory 

apartments, duplexes, fourplexes, and cottages (senior housing). According to City records, as of 

November 2020, there are 270 moderate income housing units in Alpine. 

 

HOUSEHOLD SIZE 

Household size, unlike population, is projected to drop in the next 5 years. A possible indicator 

of an aging population. 

 

 

 
 

ALPINE CITY MEDIAN HOUSHOLD INCOME 

Median household income is projected to decrease over the next 5 years, which may be related to 

the projected decrease in household size. 

 

 
 

UTAH COUNTY AREA MEDIAN INCOME 

According to the U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey, the Utah County area 

median income is projected to increase significantly over the next 5 years from $67,042 in 2017 

to $108,972 in 2024, a difference of over $41,000. If this projection is accurate, it would indicate 

that the median income gap between Alpine City and Utah County will close over the next 5 

years. 

 

 

 

2009 

American

Community 

Survey

2017 

American

Community 

Survey

2024

Projection

Average Household Size

(ACS Table B25010) 4.3 3.87 3.54
Source 1:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B25010: Average household 

size of occupied housing units by tenure.  American Community 

Survey. 

2009 

American

Community 

Survey

2017 

American

Community 

Survey

Annual

Growth Rate

(Slope)

2024

Projection

Difference 

between 2017 

and 2024

Median household income

(ACS Table B25119) $104,436 $112,727 $73 $101,542 (11,185)$      

Owner-occupied income

(ACS Table B25119) $111,071 $124,240 $522 $120,816 (3,424)$        

Renter-occupied income

(ACS Table B25119) $38,304 $54,375 $1,002 $50,627 (3,748)$        
Source 1:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B25119: Median household income that past 12 months by tenure.  American Community 

Survey. 
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GOAL 

Promote moderate income housing based on State guidelines.  

 

Policies 

1.1 Allow accessory apartments within owner-occupied dwellings throughout the City 

1.2 Allow senior housing units to be built in more dense clusters in the Senior Housing Overlay 

to reduce the cost of living. 

1.3 Preserve existing moderate income housing. 

  

2009 

American

Community 

Survey

2017 

American

Community 

Survey

Annual

Growth Rate

(Slope)

2024

Projection

Difference 

between 2017 

and 2024

Median HOUSEHOLD income

(ACS Table B19019) $0 $67,042 $4,950 $108,972 41,930$       

Source 1:  U.S. Census Bureau.  Table B19019: Median household income that past 12 months by household size.  American 

Community Survey. 
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PARKS, RECREATION, TRAILS AND 

OPEN SPACE  

GOAL #1 

Plan and maintain a sustainable high-quality parks and trails network within the 

community. 

 

Policies 

1.1 Work closely with neighboring municipalities and the appropriate entities to 

coordinate recreation opportunities and designate specific parks for the use 

of organized recreational activities. 

1.2 Work closely with neighboring municipalities and the appropriate entities to 

coordinate the trails between cities and plan connections. 

1.3 Organize volunteer efforts to periodically cleanup trails on a staggered annual 

basis in accordance with the US Forest Service Trail Standards. 

1.4 Designate trails for specific uses where needed (i.e., equestrian, walking, 

biking). 

1.5 Implement and promote the Bonneville Shoreline Trail. 

1.6 Promote and support the Alpine Trail Committee in the planning, creation, 

and maintenance of trails in Alpine City. 
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GOAL #2 

Identify and categorize city parks according to primary use and function. 

 

Policies 

2.1 Parks are classified under three main categories: Sports Parks, Family Parks, 

and Open Space Parks. 

2.1.1 Sports Parks are dedicated primarily to facilitating organized sports 

and sporting events. Sports Parks include:  

  Burgess Park 

  Healey/Smooth Canyon Parks 

  Rachel McTeer Park 

2.1.2 Family Parks are dedicated primarily to community and family leisure 

activities, no organized sports allowed. Family Parks include: 

  Beck’s Hill Park 

Creekside Park 

  Legacy Park 

Moyle Park 

Petersen Park 

Ridge at Alpine Park 

  Silverleaf Park 

2.1.3 Open Space Parks are areas of generally undisturbed land and 

vegetation allowing for recreational and leisure activity in a natural 

environment. Open Space Parks include: 

  Dry Creek Corridor 

  Heritage Hills Open Space 

Hog Hollow Trailhead 

DRAFT

Austin
Highlight
Per edit from Shane, spelling of "Silverleaf" corrected. 

Austin
Sticky Note
Comment from Shane: add language "Other various neighborhood parks".

Austin
Highlight
Per edit from Shane, replaced word "Park" with "Open Space".

Austin
Sticky Note
Comment from Shane: add "Ridge at Alpine Open Space".



   

21 
 

Lambert Park 

Rodeo Grounds 

Three Falls Open Space 

GOAL #3 

Secure access to mountains and hillsides for ALL residents (work with developers 

and homeowners to ensure this) by enforcing preserving and maintaining current 

access. 

 

Policies 

2.1 Promote and preserve parks, public open space and trails that provide access 

to mountainsides. 
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Figure 3 – Moyle Park Master Plan
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Figure 4 - Dry Creek Corridor Master 
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Figure 5 - Trail Master Plan
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PARKS, RECREATION, TRAILS AND 

OPEN SPACE – LAMBERT PARK 

GOAL #1 

Plan and maintain a sustainable high quality natural park for trails and other uses. 

 

 

Policies 

1.1 Clearly define park boundaries and entrances. 

1.2 Designate developed vs undeveloped areas of the park. Developed areas to 

include improvements such as parking lots, restrooms, cell tower, or city 

infrastructure. Undeveloped areas are generally left as natural and open as 

possible. 

1.3 Clearly define and sign trails and roads and their appropriate uses. 

1.4 Designate Lambert Park as a non-motorized park except as permitted by the 

City. 

1.5 Work with neighboring property owners to allow for the connection and 

continuity of trails between the park and surrounding areas, this includes the 

Bonneville Shoreline Trail. 

1.6 Organize volunteer efforts for the general maintenance, cleanup, weed 

control, and other needs of the park. 

1.7 Protect and preserve the poppy area and Lambert Ruins. 

1.8 Implement use policies to preserve and protect park resources for public use, 

enjoyment, and safety. 

1.9 Implement policies to preserve the ecology and enhance environmental 

stewardship of the park. 
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Figure 6 - Lambert Master Plan
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

GOAL #1 

To promote economic growth and commercial development that attracts local 

resident spending in the community, while still preserving the City’s small town 

historic feel. 

 

 

 

Policies  

1.1 Seek to expand and retain existing businesses in the community and promote 

patronage of local businesses from citizens of Alpine and neighboring 

communities.  

1.2 Seek to attract stable retail businesses that will stimulate economic growth 

and attract other likeminded businesses to the community. 

1.3 Seek to attract new low-impact businesses that fit the character and scale of 

Alpine City. 

1.4 Actively work with developers in the Business Commercial Zone to influence 

and encourage the best possible designs and outcomes for the community. 

1.5 Seek to enhance parks, trails, and open space near the business commercial 

zone to compliment commercial development and thus create an area that is 

ideal for local leisure activity, shopping, and recreation. 
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